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YIT In brief

. t’&'*; 0‘:}\

REVENUE ADJUSTED OPERATING PROFIT

3,069 ME 85 M€

COMBINED INJURY
PERSONNEL FREQUENCY (LTIF)

~1,400 9.8

DIVIDEND PROPOSAL
EMISSION REDUCTION (CO, e) (PER SHARE)

-21% 0.14€

*In October 2020, YIT announced to
close down its operations in Norway.

YIT 2020 Annual Review
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Report of the Board of Directors

LETTER BY THE CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD:
YIT'S RENEWAL IS ACCELERATING

A year of diverging developments in a challenging operating
environment

The year 2020 was exceptional and challenging in many ways due to

the COVID-19 epidemic. Employee health and ensuring the continuity of
operations at our construction sites became our top priorities. Thanks to our
quick reactions, good planning and strong commitment, we achieved good
results in both of these respects. On behalf of the Board of Directors, | want
to take this opportunity to thank the management and our entire personnel for
their excellent work during the difficult year.

The uncertainty in residential and investment demand caused by COVID-19
had a negative impact on our business. We were forced to adapt our costs
through furloughs and delay the start of new projects. In certain projects, there
were delays on the client side, and the increased market yield requirements
had a negative effect on the fair value of the Mall of Tripla in particular.

In addition to challenges arising from COVID-19, the year was characterised

by inconsistencies in performance. Our residential construction segments —
Housing Finland and CEE as well as Housing Russia — performed excellently,
while project cost deviations particularly in the Business premises segment had
a significant negative effect on our result. Overall, our adjusted operating profit
for 2020 was weak.

While our best construction sites are the very best in all of Finland and they
adhere to YIT’s excellent project practices, the differences between strong
performance and weak performance are too large. With this in mind, our first
priority in 2021 will be to enhance project management and thereby improve
our operating result.
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Predictable, good dividend yield is important for our shareholders. Last year’'s
weak Group profitability and translation differences in Russia have weakened
our solvency. However, even in the prevailing uncertainty, we want to ensure
our capability to invest in interesting projects and business opportunities,

for instance, through plot investments and joint ventures. Consequently, the
Board of Directors has come to a conclusion to propose the Annual General
Meeting that a dividend of EUR 0.14 per share be paid for the year 2020.

New management to accelerate change

Improving project management calls for changes in our operating methods
and company culture. To accelerate these changes, we decided to make a
change in management: Kari Kauniskangas left his post as YIT’s President
and CEO in October 2020. | want to extend my warmest thanks to Kari for his
commitment and contribution to the company over his long and distinguished
career at YIT.

Markku Moilanen will join YIT as the new President and CEO in 2021.
| welcome Markku to YIT to lead the company’s strategic and operational
renewal together with our management and entire personnel.

The changing environment requires renewal

Our operating environment and competitive landscape are changing at an
increasingly rapid rate. Urbanisation, digital transformation, population trends
and sustainability requirements are creating new challenges and opportunities
that YIT must react to.

YIT’s strategy is built around the core of sustainable urban development,
which is based on these megatrends. We are in an excellent position to move
forward: we have highly competent and committed employees, a strong and
well-known brand, we are an attractive employer, we have excellent processes
and operating models as well as a large plot reserve, excellent project portfolio
and the financial resources to invest in the development of our business. At
the same time, we need to have the humility to recognise the areas in which
we must change; for example, through the renewal of our operating methods,
strengthening our competencies and creating new kinds of partnerships.

INVESTOR
RELATIONS
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The rate of change can be further increased by external shocks. For instance,
the year of the pandemic has — partly due to restrictions — accelerated the
development and implementation of new customer-oriented operating models,
such as the use of digital solutions in sales and the customer interface, where
we suddenly had to operate entirely digitally without in-person meetings.

One way to respond to the accelerating changes in the operating environment
and the competitive landscape is to shift from traditional service- and product-

oriented thinking to a genuinely agile approach focusing on customer needs

and solutions. Ideally, this can create significant added value for customers
and thereby enable us to differentiate ourselves from our competitors.

At YIT and in the broader construction industry, there is a need to rethink the
relationships and partnerships between the various value chain participants
that make up the industry ecosystem. Achieving significant improvements with
respect to CO2 emissions, energy efficiency, productivity, occupational safety
and quality would create tremendous business opportunities. However, this

calls for moving from the current transaction-driven approach to new kinds
of strategic cooperation between construction firms, designers, construction
material suppliers, subcontractors and other parties.

Implementing these new approaches within YIT and with our various partners

calls for the continuous development of our business model as well as the

strengthening of competencies, corporate architecture, data management,
application infrastructure and IT infrastructure. Above all, this process of
renewal calls for a clear vision and strong change management.

Going forward, we will need to demonstrate even more of the innovativeness,
speed and courage we have shown during the pandemic. These new insights
will hopefully increase our organisation’s capability and courage to question
old truths and take significant steps to improve performance, overcome future
strategic challenges and take advantage of opportunities.

Wishing you a successful year of renewal in 2021!

Harri-Pekka Kaukonen
Chairman of the Board

YIT 2020 | Annual Review 5
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BUSINESS MODEL AND VALUE CREATION

YIT’s business is based on urban development and the entire life cycle of
the built environment. YIT develops and builds housing and living services,
business premises and entire areas, and is a specialist in demanding
infrastructure construction. At the core of its business model is a continuous
flow of development projects that covers design, construction, ownership
and service delivery.

YIT’s service offering consists of four business areas: housing, business
premises, infrastructure and partnership properties.

The housing business consists of the development and construction of
apartments and entire residential areas as well as holiday homes. The
main focus of operations is on self-developed projects, and YIT sells the
apartments mainly itself to both consumers and investors. In addition, YIT
offers and develops various living services and concepts.

The business premises business comprises both self-developed and
contracted business premises construction as well as renovation
construction. YIT implements a variety of projects for its customers, from
schools to hospitals, industrial halls and commercial properties. YIT is
specialised in life cycle projects, particularly with public sector customers.

The infrastructure business covers the construction of roads, bridges,
railways and metro stations as well as ports and parking facilities, power
plants, water supply and industrial facilities. YIT also offers wind power plant
establishment solutions and related services and maintenance. In addition,
YIT quarries tunnels and mines and reinforces the soil using various methods
as well as provides road maintenance services.

The partnership properties business comprises project development for
large self-developed projects, property management and the management
and increase of value of YIT’s investment assets through various service
concepts.
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VALUE FOR THE STAKEHOLDERS

As an urban developer, YIT creates value for its stakeholders through its
entire business portfolio.

YIT’s most important resources are its professional staff, strong financial
capital, broad plot reserve, various building materials and natural resources as
well as YIT’s brand, corporate culture and long-term partnerships in the supply
chain.

From these resources, YIT develops and builds value for people, society and
the environment through its business.

Read more about YIT’s value creation model and impact of the

business on the surrounding society.

SUSTAINABLE

URBAN
DEVELOPMENT

STRATEGY

In 2020, YIT continued its strategy execution by focusing even stronger on
sustainable urban development and property investments. The company’s
target is to continue to strengthen its residential plot reserve focusing on
capital regions and other strongest growth centres and to increase its
capabilities further in project development. In property investments, strong
partnerships and co-operation models enable implementing large urban
projects with controlled capital use and a lower risk level. The company also
continues to grow its long-term housing portfolio.

Balance sheet is further strengthened by streamlining business portfolio. In

2020, YIT completed the sale of the Nordic paving and mineral aggregates
businesses and made a decision to close down operations in Norway.

YIT is involved In the
entire life cycle of the
built environment.,

@ READ MORE ABOUT YIT’S BUSINESSES


https://www.yitgroup.com/en/about-yit?utm_source=Offline&utm_medium=pdf&utm_campaign=annualreview2020&utm_content=aboutyit
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STRATEGIC TARGETS

YIT’s strategic targets as confirmed by the Board of Directors are:
e >12% return on capital employed (ROCE)
® < 50% gearing
e Annually growing dividend per share
e Halving greenhouse gas emissions from 2019 by 2030

The main goal of the targets is a stable dividend yield over the cycles. During
2020, YIT’s return on capital employed weakened as the result declined but
measures to free up capital continued. The gearing improved significantly: in
particular, the sale of the Nordic paving and mineral aggregates businesses
supported the development of gearing. Dividend grew in line with the target.
Related to year 2019, on top of the actual dividend, YIT’s Board of Directors
decided on an additional dividend payment of EUR 0.12 per share related
to the completion of the sale of the Nordic paving and mineral aggregates
business. During 2020, YIT achieved -21% emission reduction of own
operations, including energy consumption, waste and business flights, and
thus took a solid first step towards its emissions reduction target.

Tripla, Helsinki, Finlang
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OPERATING ENVIRONMENT

YIT operates in Finland, Sweden, Russia, the Baltic countries and Eastern
Central Europe. YIT discontinued its operations in Denmark in March 2020
due to the sale of the Nordic paving and mineral aggregates businesses.
In addition, YIT announced in October 2020 that it would close down its
infrastructure business in Norway. The close down is estimated to last until
2022.

DEVELOPMENT OF THE OPERATING ENVIRONMENT IN 2020

During the reporting year, YIT’s operating environment was hit by the
COVID-19 pandemic along with the entire world. The effects began to show
in YIT’s operating countries in mid-March, and the extent of the effects
varied within the year in line with the pandemic waves. During the year, the
pandemic caused a few temporary site closures following the decisions

of the authorities, delays in the authority processes, and general market
uncertainty. YIT’s operations remained uninterrupted in all countries in which
it operates, taking into account the restrictions related to the

COVID-19 pandemic.

Housing

In Finland, residential demand was at a good level in the beginning of the
year, but fell sharply in the spring due to the COVID-19 pandemic. However,
demand normalised quickly and returned to a strong level towards the end
of the year. Housing company loan financing was stable but challenging due
to the caution of banks. Consumers’ access to mortgages also started to
become more difficult towards the end of the year.

In the CEE countries, residential demand was at a good level at the
beginning of the year, but weakened considerably in the spring due to the
COVID-19 pandemic. Demand recovered during the summer and autumn,
but uncertainty about the evolution of the COVID-19 pandemic created
ongoing uncertainty. The pandemic slowed down the authorities’ permitting
processes, which delayed the commissioning of completed apartments.

Demand for housing in Russia was focused on reliable developers in the face

of uncertainty caused by the COVID-19 pandemic. Mortgage interest rates
remained low supporting demand, and the share of consumers purchasing
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apartments with mortgages increased during the year. In the Moscow
region, all construction sites were closed for approximately one month
during the spring 2020 through a decision by the authorities to prevent the
spread of the COVID-19 pandemic.

Business premises

In Finland, public sector demand remained active despite the COVID-19
pandemic. Private customers postponed their purchasing decisions due to
the uncertainty caused by the COVID-19 pandemic. In the CEE countries,
fears of market development during the COVID-19 pandemic led to a
declining price level in public contracting, but it began to stabilise towards
the end of the year.

Infrastructure

In Finland, demand for infrastructure projects remained stable at the
beginning of the year, but began to weaken as the COVID-19 pandemic
caused delays in the project planning. In the summer of 2020, the Finnish
state decided on stimulus packages for the infrastructure sector, which are
expected to support demand from 2021 onwards.

In Sweden, the market remained solid supported by several ongoing major
infrastructure projects and industrial investments. In the Baltic countries, the
market environment remained challenging due to intense competition.

Partnership properties

Property investor decision making was postponed in the spring
due to the uncertainty caused by the COVID-19 pandemic,
but became more active again during the latter part

of the year. The uncertainty caused by the COVID-19
pandemic had an impact on real estate yield requirements,
which rose especially at the end of the year for
commercial real estate in Finland.

@ Housing

*In October 2020, YIT
announced to close down
its operations in Norway.

Business Infrastructure @ Partnership

premises

properties
9
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REVENUE

The Group’s revenue amounted to EUR 3,069 million (3,392). Revenue
increased in Housing Finland and CEE supported by an increase in consumer
apartment completions. Revenue also increased in Housing Russia as a
result of strong apartment sales levels, as well as the change in revenue
recognition over time. Revenue decreased in the Business premises as the
comparison period included a revenue from the Tripla project. Revenue of
Infrastructure was relatively flat, and revenue of Partnership properties was
higher compared to the previous year.

Helsinki-Vantaa airport, Finland
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RESULT

The Group’s adjusted operating profit was EUR 85 million (165) and

the adjusted operating profit margin 2.8% (4.9). The fair value changes
amounted to EUR -15 million in 2020 compared to EUR 79 million in 2019.
Operationally, the year was mixed. The housing segments posted strong
results driven by higher sales and improved margin levels. On the other hand,
Business premises’ profitability was heavily burdened by financial settlements
of EUR 50 million in three challenging projects.

YIT’s operating profit was EUR 35 million (80). Adjusting items amounted

to EUR 50 million (85). Key adjusting items include a write-down of EUR

12 million related to the decision to close down Infrastructure operations in
Norway, a write-down of EUR 13 million in operations to be closed in Russia.
Other adjusting items are mainly related to operating profit from operations to
be closed.

Result before taxes was EUR -6 million (40). Result for the period amounted
to EUR -8 million (5) and result for the period including discontinued
operations amounted to EUR 27 million (15). Gain on sale of Nordic paving
and mineral aggregate businesses amounted to EUR 55 million.

GOVERNANCE
STATEMENTS

INVESTOR
RELATIONS
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CASH FLOW AND FINANCIAL POSITION INTEREST-BEARING DEBT PORTFOLIO

Group’s full year operating cash flow after investments was EUR 336 million

(51). Full year cash flow from plot investments was EUR -155 million (-153), ® Bonds 22%

and cash flow from investments to associated companies and joint ventures .
Commercial papers 19% x

was EUR -24 million (-34). @ Housing corporation loans related to il

unsold apartments 15% |

At the end of the period, interest-bearing debt amounted to EUR 1,114 @ Loans from financial institutions 18%
million (1,051) and net interest-bearing debt to EUR 628 million (862). Equity @ Lease liabilities 21% | '“
ratio was 33% (34) and gearing ratio 68% (81). Net debt/adjusted EBITDA Other interest-bearing debt 5%

ratio was 5.0 (3.9). Net finance costs were EUR 41 million (40). | \ ‘ |

In the first quarter of 2020, YIT repaid a EUR 30 million term loan and agreed [

on a two-year term loan of EUR 50 million with a maturity date in March NET INTEREST-BEARING DEBT AND GEARING | i l |
2022. The agreement includes two options for a one-year extension. In gL
addition, YIT agreed in the second quarter to extend EUR 255 million of its :AEL(J)E ?OO ' [
EUR 300 million committed revolving credit facility with one year to August ’ : e
2022. YIT also agreed on a one-year extension of its EUR 30 million and EUR 800 80 f r
50 million term loans. The new maturity date for the EUR 30 million term loan @ Net interest-bearing debt — il
is in June 2021 and the new maturity date for the EUR 50 million term loan is 600 60 ° gAEQR) o I i
. earing (% T
in October 2021. 400 20 o :
A
Cash and cash equivalents increased to EUR 419 million (132), in addition to 200 20
which YIT had undrawn overdraft facilities amounting to EUR 47 million (47). . R !
Furthermore, a committed revolving credit facility of EUR 300 million (300) 0 2018! 2019 2020 0 - . “HHL
was completely undrawn, and undrawn and committed housing corporation ‘excluding IFRS 16 NN L
and project loan limits related to apartment projects amounted to EUR 147 4 ' I -
million (281). B\

OPERATING CASH FLOW AFTER - Tl
INVESTMENTS (MEUR) i !
!
I

Capital employed was EUR 1,527 million (1,669) at the end of the year, out of

which capital employed in Russia was 12% (18) resulting in EUR 186 million 400 / r'

(294). Equity investments in Russia were EUR 271 million (352). i
300

In Russia, the change in the housing act, which came into force in summer

2019, requires that in new residential development projects the consumer 200

payments for housing shall be made to escrow accounts instead of direct

payments to the contractor. The funds will be released to the contractor from 100 =

the escrow accounts upon completion of the project. This change had a -

2018 2019 2020
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negative impact of EUR 54 million (1) on YIT’s cash flow in 2020. The Russian CASH FLOW OF INVESTMENTS (MEUR)

escrow accounts amounted to EUR 55 million (1) on 31 December 2020.
2018 2019 2020

0

Equity decreased to EUR 920 million (1,061), reflecting primarily translation N/A
differences and paid dividends. 50
® Plots
INVESTMENTS AND DIVESTMENTS -100 .
Associated

Full year gross capital expenditure was EUR 31 million (32), or 1.0% of 150 companies and
revenue (0.9), of which EUR 26 million (21) leased. joint ventures

-200

Investments in plots were EUR 95 million (173), after which the plot reserve
amounted to EUR 678 million (727). In addition, investments in leased
plots amounted to EUR 13 million (20), after which the leased plot reserve
amounted to EUR 134 million (126).
ORDER BOOK (MEUR)

On 1 April 2020, the sale of YIT’s paving and mineral aggregates businesses

in Finland, Sweden, Norway and Denmark to Peab was completed. 5,000

The debt-free purchase price amounted to EUR 288 million. 4,000

ORDER BOOK 3,000

At the end of the year 2020, YIT’s order book amounted to EUR 3,528 million 2,000

(4,131). Order book decreased in housing segments and Infra segment

whereas the combined order book of the Business premises and Partnership 1,000

properties segments increased. At the end of the year, 82% of the order

book was sold (69). 0 2018 2019 2020

During 2020, numerous projects were added to YIT’s order book, the most
significant of which were schools and kindergartens implemented with the
PPP model in Espoo, Finland (approx. EUR 235 million), the residential
project in the hospital area in Koskela, Helsinki, Finland (approx. EUR 70
million), the second phase of the Tampere tram network in Finland (approx.
EUR 62 million), the business premises project with Savo Consortium for
Education in Finland (approx. EUR 62 million), road maintenance contracts
in Finland (approx. EUR 56 million), the Lapland Central Hospital alliance
project in Finland (approx. EUR 48 million), the Stockholm metro extension in
Sweden (approx. EUR 40 million ) and the Sodankyla multipurpose life cycle
project in Finland (approx. EUR 35 million).

Tripla, Helsinki, Finland

YIT 2020 | Annual Review 12
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BUSINESSES

YIT has five reportable business segments: Housing Finland and CEE,
Housing Russia, Business premises, Infrastructure and Partnership
properties.

Following an organisational change on 1 May 2020, the real estate
management and project development businesses were transferred from the
Business premises segment into the Partnership properties segment having
an impact on order book and capital employed of both segments from that
point onward.

The Nordic paving and mineral aggregates operations sold on 1 April 2020
are reported in discontinued operations.

HOUSING FINLAND AND CEE

The segment’s revenue increased to EUR 1,286 million (1,240) supported by
an increase in consumer apartment completions. Revenue in the comparison
period included a block sale of nearly 600 apartments to a joint venture.
Adjusted operating profit increased to EUR 108 million (91) driven by strong
apartment sales and improved margins. The segment’s adjusted operating
profit margin was 8.4% (7.4).

HOUSING RUSSIA

Following a reassessment of current legislation, legal practice and terms of
YIT’s sales contracts in Russia, the criteria for revenue recognition over time
(POC) has been fulfiled. Thus, from the first quarter 2020 onwards, YIT has
recognised revenue over time from sold apartments in Russian residential
development projects.

In 2020, the segment’s revenue iincreased by 27% to EUR 305 million (240)
as a result of strong apartment sales levels, as well as the change in revenue
recognition over time. Revenue from continuing units was EUR 204 million.
The impact of EUR-RUB exchange rates was EUR -43 million compared to
the previous year. Adjusted operating profit increased to EUR 27 million (1),
driven by strong apartment sales, increased margins, operational efficiency
measures, as well as solid operations on sites despite the COVID-19
pandemic. The result was further supported by a plot sale of EUR 5 million.
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The impact of EUR-RUB exchange rates was EUR -4 million compared to
the previous year. The segment’s adjusted operating profit margin was 8.8%
(0.5).

BUSINESS PREMISES

The segment’s revenue decreased by 35% to EUR 761 million (1,177).
The comparison period included revenue from the Tripla project and the
real estate management business. Adjusted operating profit decreased to
EUR -44 million (-7) largely due to financial settlements in three challenging
projects which burdened the result by EUR 50 million. The segment’s
adjusted operating profit margin was -5.8% (-0.6).

INFRASTRUCTURE

In October 2020, YIT announced that it will start planning to close down

its Infrastructure operations in Norway. The personnel reduction is
approximately 130 people and the close down is estimated to last until 2022,
when all ongoing construction projects have been finalised. From the third
quarter 2020 onwards, the operating profit or loss from the businesses to be
closed down will be recorded in adjusting items and will not be presented in
adjusted operating profit.

The segment’s revenue decreased by 2%, to EUR 791 million (807) largely
due to lower production volumes in Norway and the Baltic countries.
Adjusted operating profit decreased to EUR 13 million (15) mainly due to
margin reductions. The segment’s adjusted operating profit margin was 1.6%
(1.9).

PARTNERSHIP PROPERTIES

The segment’s revenue was EUR 17 million (0). Adjusted operating profit
decreased to EUR 5 million (83). The changes in fair values amounted EUR
-15 million in 2020, compared to EUR 79 million in 2019. Operationally, the
financial performance in 2020 was supported by the finalisation of the Espoo
Keilaniemi project’s real estate transaction in Finland as well as the sale of the
housing stock of YIT’s and Alandsbanken’s associated company AB Kodit | Ky.

YIT widened its investment portfolio by establishing a company with the
OP-Rental Yield special fund investing in rental apartments. The investment
value of the projects is approximately EUR 130 million, and YIT’s share of the
joint investment is 40%.

REVENUE BY SEGMENT

Housing Finland and CEE 41%
Housing Russia 10%

Business premises 24%
Infrastructure 25%

Partnership properties 1%

ADJUSTED OPERATING PROFIT BY SEGMENT (MEUR)

200

150 ||

2018! 2019

PERSONNEL BY SEGMENT

2020

Housing Finland and CEE
Housing Russia

Business premises
Infrastructure

Partnership properties
Others

Housing Finland and CEE 35%
Housing Russia 20%

Business premises 14%
Infrastructure 25%

Partnership properties 1%
Group 5%
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DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Discontinued operations include the Nordic paving and mineral aggregates
operations sold on 1 April 2020 and related allocations. The revenue of the
discontinued operations was EUR 27 million (540). Operating profit was
EUR -22 million (12).

Tripla, Helsinki, Finland
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RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

YIT’s research and development activities continued in 2020 in accordance
with the themes of the company’s strategy. The Group’s investments

in research and development amounted to EUR 25 million (23), which
corresponds to 0.8% of net sales (0.7). Investments include internal
resourcing and consulting in strategic development programs and
technology investments. The company updated the calculation method for
research and development investments during 2020, and the figures for
the comparison periods have been updated in accordance with the new
calculation method.

STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMMES

In 2020, YIT continued its four strategic development programmes:
Performance, Customer focus, Green growth and Services development.

The Performance program focuses on improving business mix, pricing,
productivity, and project management. During the year, special emphasis
was placed on developing project management through financial forecasting,
supply chain management, production, personnel and the management
system. Industrial construction was taken forward through product
standardisation, prefabrication, data modeling, takt time production, and
material flow management. Good results were achieved in shortening
project lead times. The development of site management focused on quality
management and occupational safety. The development of the Group’s
common management system continued and its implementation progressed
in the Group’s and business support functions.

The Customer Focus program aims to develop sales and the customer
interface and to promote customer focus. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic,
the development of the digital customer path was emphasised during the
year. With regard to apartment sales, the sales process was transferred

to digital channels in Finland and Russia, which served as a positive
differentiating factor from competitors. Key customer work continued
systematically. In addition the collection, reporting and utilisation of customer
feedback from professional customers was developed.

The Green Growth program focuses on integrating sustainable
development into business operations. During the year, the priorities were to

develop the capability of carbon footprint calculations and the development
of renewable energy solutions, and to start planning for emission reductions
in accordance with YIT’s climate targets. In addition, the development of an
internal sustainability reporting platform was continued, which allows projects
to monitor, among other things, their energy consumption and the generation
of waste on construction sites.

In the Services Development program new service business models are
designed to support YIT’s profitability. During the year, the development of
customer-oriented service design was continued and the Workery+ concept
of flexibly leased furnished office space was prepared. In addition, YIT
conducted a study on future working practices together with Microsoft. The
utilisation of data at different stages of the building life cycle was developed
as part of YIT’s own service business and in the KEKO development project
supported by Business Finland. In addition, YIT made two significant minority
investments in service technology companies, whose technologies can be
used to improve indoor air conditions and energy efficiency in buildings.

OTHER RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES

In the financial management development project, the company has
continued to harmonise financial and forecasting practices and systems.
The first pilot of economic systems was put into production in Sweden and
Norway at the turn of the year 2020-2021. In addition, the development of
the company’s core data management continued.

Knowledge management was developed by continuing to invest in the
development of data and analytics capabilities, focusing on data collection,
centralisation, standardisation and compilation.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT COSTS (MEUR)

40

30

2018 2019 2020



Yir

REPORT OF THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PARENT COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GOVERNANCE
STATEMENTS

INVESTOR
RELATIONS

SUSTAINABILITY

This section reviews YIT’s non-financial information.

SUSTAINABILITY MANAGEMENT

Sustainable development is one of the four cornerstones of YIT’s strategy.
It guides business planning with aims to strengthen the company’s
sustainability performance. In addition, the strategy is supported by

four development programmes, of which the Green Growth programme
integrates sustainable development into business operations and seeks
related new business opportunities.

The Board of Directors bears the highest responsibility for managing YIT’s
sustainable development. The Board of Directors discusses issues related to
the overall sustainability as needed and decides on the company’s long-term
objectives. YIT’'s Group Management Team, led by the President and CEO, is
responsible for the operational management of sustainability, setting annual
targets and integrating them into operations. More detailed management
practices are described by topic in the following chapters.

Climate change mitigation is one of YIT’s strategic targets. Among other
things, the company’s objective is to halve its greenhouse gas emissions
from its own operations and self-developed projects from 2019 to 2030.

In addition, the company sets annual Group and segment-level targets for
each key area of sustainable development. The progress of these targets
is monitored in accordance with the agreed reporting principles in both the
Group Management Team and the Board of Directors.

Sustainability themes have been integrated into the company’s risk
management. The identification and management of risks related to the
environment, climate change, personnel, responsible procurement, human
rights and the fight against corruption and the grey economy take place as
part of the overall risk management and are implemented in accordance
with common practices. In addition, YIT launched a detailed study on the
risks and opportunities of climate change in autumn 2020. Risks and risk
management are described in more detail in the chapter Risks and risk
management.

YIT 2020 | Annual Review

Sustainability is part of YIT’s management system, which is used

throughout the Group. The management system is based on the ISO 14001
environmental system, the ISO 45001 occupational health and safety system
and the ISO 9001 quality system. ISO 14001, ISO 45001 and ISO 9001

are certified in Finland, Sweden, Norway, Estonia, Lithuania and the Czech
Republic. In addition, Latvia has a certified ISO 50001 energy management
system.

Guiding principles
The Code of Conduct and the Sustainability Policy serve as the highest
guiding principles for YIT’s sustainable operations.

The YIT Code of Conduct was updated for 2019 and it contains the
company’s guiding principles in relation to customers, employees,
shareholders, business partners, competitors, society and the environment.
The Code of Conduct must be complied with always and in every section of
YIT. Everyone at YIT has a reporting obligation when they suspect a violation,
and a violation of the principles will result in an appropriate consequence.

YIT’s Sustainability Policy was introduced in 2019 and it determines the
company’s state of mind and objectives in relation to the sustainability
themes. The Sustainability Policy outlines the company’s operations in

relation to the environment, personnel and social affairs, human rights,
economic activities, and ethics and governance.

YIT Is committed

to supporting the
UN Sustainable
Development Goals.

@ READ MORE

YIT is committed to supporting the UN Sustainable Development Goals.
The most important objectives for YIT’s operations are 11. Sustainable
cities and communities, 12. Responsible consumption and production, 13.
Climate action, 16. Peace, justice and strong institutions and 8. Decent
work and economic growth. The relationship of each objective to YIT's

key sustainability themes is described in the section Key sustainability
indicators.

DECENT WORK AND
ECONOMIC GROWTH
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Key sustainable development themes

YIT has defined the most important sustainability themes for its operations
with its stakeholders. The previous materiality analysis was carried out in the
summer of 2018 with more than 2,000 stakeholder representatives, and the
selected themes will continue to guide the company’s operations. The most
material sustainable development themes for YIT’s operations are:
1. Creating sustainable, comfortable and safe urban development by
utilising opportunities provided by the circular economy
2. Compliance with good corporate governance and preventing corruption
and the grey economy
3. Occupational safety
4. Promoting the personnel’s occupational well-being and competence
development
5. Implementing responsible subcontracting and procurement
6. Reducing the environmental impact of YIT's own operations


https://www.yitgroup.com/en/sustainability/sustainability-management/sdg?utm_source=Offline&utm_medium=pdf&utm_campaign=annualreview2020&utm_content=sustainabilitymanagement
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Impact of the business on the surrounding society

YIT’s business has significant and long-term effects on the surrounding society.
YIT’'s most significant impact on society consists of the results of its operations,
meaning housing, business premises and infrastructure as well as projects for
the development of wider urban environments. A built environment has a life
cycle of decades, even centuries, so sustainable design and execution are
essential for the impacts of YIT’s operations, for example, in connection with
climate change.

The positive impacts of the company’s operations include, for example,
sustainable and long-term living environments offered to customers, regional
conversion projects, the development and utilisation of new sustainable
products and services, and the direct and indirect employment effect.

In addition, the company is a major taxpayer and creates value for its
shareholders through dividends and an increase in market value.

The negative impacts are the use of raw materials and other materials, energy
consumption and the resulting greenhouse gas emissions. Furthermore,
waste is generated as a by-product of the company’s operations. The aim is
to reduce the negative effects by improving the productivity and efficiency of
operations, developing existing products in a low-carbon direction and utilising
circular economy solutions in YIT’s operations.

In line with YIT’s strategy, the company strives to generate positive value for
society as a whole through sustainable urban development. In the summer
2020, YIT modelled the net impacts of its operations. The model creates a
holistic overview of the environment, health, society and information. In YIT’s
operations, the most significant value created was in social infrastructure. YIT
also creates positive value for the environment and health through various
projects, such as hospitals, schools and renewable energy production facilities.
The largest negative impact of YIT’s operations is on the environment, as
construction causes emissions and generates waste. YIT’s net impact was
+0.2, in other words, the company’s products and services create more value
than they cause costs or harm (Upright model version 0.3.331 10.12.2020).
The average of companies listed on Nasdag Helsinki was +0.7.

The company’s business model is described in the chapter Business model

Central library Oodi, Helsinki, Finland

and value creation.
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ENVIRONMENT

YIT’s operations have an impact on the environment through its modification,
the use of natural resources and the long life cycle of products. The company
strives to reduce the negative environmental impacts it causes on both its own
operations and its products, and to provide customers with environmentally
friendly solutions.

YIT Group’s Board of Directors and Group Management Team define

the Group’s environmental objectives and monitor their implementation.
Businesses are responsible for implementing objectives and development
plans. The sustainability organisation supports business operations and
coordinates Group-wide development projects as well as the Group’s
sustainability reporting. The general operating principles of environmental
management are described in YIT’s environmental principles. In addition,

a procurement policy and a Supplier Code of Conduct are in place, which
contain requirements for YIT’s partners regarding environmental responsibility.

In autumn 2019, YIT set long-term targets for mitigating climate change:
* To halve greenhouse gas emissions from its own operations and self-
developed projects by 2030 from 2019 levels
e To enable carbon-neutral heating, cooling and hot water in self-
developed projects
e To report project-specific carbon footprint of self-developed projects from
2020 onwards

To support these long-term targets, the Group’s and segments’ annual
objectives were set, and measures were incorporated into the segments’
annual plans.

Environmental aspects in YIT’s own operations

YIT strives to reduce the negative environmental impacts of its operations. The
biggest impacts of YIT's own operations come from energy consumption and
waste. The target set by YIT to halve the emissions of its own operations takes into
account emissions caused by energy consumption, waste and business flights.

Measures and progress in 2020

During 2020, the planning of a roadmap to reduce emissions of YIT’'s own
operations was launched. In 2020 YIT achieved a -21% reduction on the
emission intensity of its own operations compared to 2019.

YIT 2020 | Annual Review

YIT’s energy consumption declined slightly, but energy intensity remained at
the previous year’s level. Emissions from energy consumption decreased as
the use of renewable electricity was introduced in Finland and Norway. In the
comparison period, renewable electricity was used only in YIT’s Lithuanian
operations. The share of renewable electricity in the Group’s electricity
consumption rose to 56% (4).

During the year, measures were taken to improve the sorting and recycling

of waste. In Slovakia, for example, an analysis of the costs and emissions of
waste generated by construction sites was launched, with the aim of reducing
waste through the Lean Construction method in the coming years. In Finland,
the waste sorting rate increased to 70% (46). Overall, emissions from waste
decreased slightly from the previous year.

Energy and waste reporting was standardised and expanded to cover all
offices and construction sites under operational control throughout the
Group’s operating area. Project-specific energy reporting was developed in
Finland during the year and will be introduced in all segments in 2021. The
development of project-specific waste and energy reporting will continue in
2021. Environmental and waste reporting training was organised in several
segments during the year.

Business flights and the resulting emissions decreased significantly primarily
due to the COVID-19 pandemic.

Reporting of environmental observations was promoted by developing a
mobile tool for reporting observations. The tool will be introduced in Finland in
January 2021.

Protecting biodiversity is also important in YIT’s operations, and the most direct
impact on biodiversity is in projects locally. YIT strives to take into account the
conservation of biodiversity and species in the planning of projects and during
the construction phase on sites. During the year, for example, the Jokeri Light
Rail project in Helsinki made it possible for small animals to move with the help
of a culvert and installed artificial nests for house martins.

Environmental issues are part of YIT’s audits, and during the year
environmental responsibility has been the focus of the audits, especially in the

Infra segment. With the COVID-19 pandemic, audit methods were developed
and the utilisation of a drone in YIT’s internal site audits began in the segment
towards the end of the year.

During the reporting year, there were a few minor environmental anomalies,

such as minor oil spills, for which corrective measures were taken immediately
at the sites in accordance with the action plans.

ENERGY CONSUMPTION AND INTENSITY

GWh GWh / revenue MEUR
1,000 0.5
800 0.4
600 0.3 @ Energy consumption (GWh)
@ Energy intensity
400 0.2 (GWh / revenue MEUR)
200 0.1

2018' 2019 2020

‘includes discontinued operations

GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS AND
EMISSION INTENSITY

tCO,e tCO,e / revenue MEUR
300,000 100
240,000 80 @ Scope 1 (tCO,e)

Scope 2 (tCO,e)
@ Scope 3 (tCO,e)

40 @ Emission intensity
(tCO,e / revenue MEUR)

180,000 60
120,000
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Environmental aspects in YIT’s products and services

YIT strives to offer its customers environmentally friendly solutions, and to
develop its products and services in a low-emission direction. The design
takes into account the environmental aspects throughout the product’s life
cycle. This development is supported by YIT’s long-term targets to halve
the life cycle emissions of materials from self-developed projects by 2030
compared to 2019, calculate the carbon footprint of all self-developed
projects and enable carbon-neutral heating, cooling and hot water in self-
developed projects.

Measures and progress in 2020

Life cycle emissions of construction materials used in self-developed projects
remained close to the level of the comparison year 2019, as during the

year the primary focus was on developing the carbon footprint calculation
capability of YIT’s own personnel. The planning of a Group-wide emission
reduction roadmap was started in cooperation with the business segments.

Project personnel were trained in carbon footprint calculation in all
construction segments and in almost all operating countries. During the
year, a preliminary carbon footprint calculation was performed at the design
phase in nearly all self-developed projects (coverage 98%) and automation
for accurate calculation was being developed. In addition, numerous

other projects were calculated in the Business premises and Infrastructure
segments to develop competence.

YIT has been involved in developing the carbon footprint calculation in

the construction industry by participating in the piloting of low-carbon
construction by the Finnish Ministry of the Environment in five projects. In
addition, in the infrastructure industry, YIT wants to be actively involved in
developing a unified carbon footprint calculation model. In autumn 2020, YIT
also participated in the #Solution2020 Infra Hackathon to search for new
innovations in calculating the carbon footprint of an infrastructure project
and optimising a project’s carbon footprint during the design phase. The
Hackathon’s results can be utilised in the further development of calculation
and carbon footprint reduction measures.

YIT is actively exploring the possibilities of different material alternatives.
During the year, construction began in Tampere on two of the first wooden
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module apartment buildings in YIT’s history. In addition, the piloting of
more environmentally friendly concrete will start in 2021 as part of the
implementation of the emission reductions for self-developed projects.

Two theses were also carried out on the effects of different material solutions
on emissions in the Housing Finland and CEE segment. The results of the
research will be utilised, among other things, as part of the carbon footprint
calculation and project emission reduction work.

The circular economy offers opportunities to reduce project emissions and
environmental impact. During the year, for example, the Tampere Tramway
Alliance project utilised surplus earth materials in, for instance, motorway
noise barrier structures, and the Blominmaki wastewater treatment plant
project in Espoo utilised surplus concrete as crushed concrete. In addition,
a thesis in the Infra segment was completed to develop the recycling of land
masses, and the results of the research will be used in the development of
operations.

With regard to the carbon-neutral energy use of the projects built by YIT,
the focus during the financial year was on developing a service-based

geothermal heating solution in the first residential pilot projects. Moreover, the

construction of three projects with geothermal heating were started during
the year, which will be able to save 49% of the greenhouse gas emissions
related to heating, cooling and hot water over the entire life cycle compared
to a conventional district heating building. The utilisation of waste heat in
hybrid projects was studied in the Business premises segment.

Managing a property’s energy consumption is an essential part of minimising
a property’s life cycle emissions. YIT also strives to enable good indoor air

conditions in all properties it builds. During the year, YIT made two significant

minority investments in service technology companies, Nuuka Solutions

Oy and IISY Oy, whose technologies can be used to improve the indoor air
conditions and energy efficiency of buildings. The aim of the investments

is to promote the development of the real estate sector towards more
sustainable solutions, promote the achievement of YIT’s climate targets,
increase the value of the properties built and owned by YIT and improve the
user experience.

YIT utilises various environmental certificates to support design and
construction. For example, life cycle projects are planned with customers
in accordance with the Finnish RTS environmental classification. During the
year, the Sodankyla welfare centre Sopukka, built by YIT, was awarded a
LEED Gold environmental certificate, and the K3 West warehouse property
completed in Vantaa applied for a LEED Silver certificate. In addition, the
Merenoja comprehensive school built by YIT in Kalajoki was Finland’s

first primary school to be awarded the Nordic Swan Ecolabel. In the Infra
segment, both the Crown Bridges project in Helsinki and the Sockenplan
metro project in Stockholm have applied for the international CEEQUAL
certification.

Environmental aspects are increasingly reflected in customer requests and
requirements but also in project performance indicators. For example, the
Tampere Tramway Alliance uses various environmental indicators from energy
consumption to waste and carbon footprint calculation.

Tampere Tramway Alliance, Tampere;-Finland
Photo: Wiille Nyyssdnen
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SOCIAL AND PERSONNEL-RELATED ISSUES

Occupational safety, well-being at work and competence development
are the most material social and personnel issues for YIT. As an attractive
employer, YIT strives to take care of its personnel in all situations.

The personnel management approach is described in YIT’s personnel
principles and it is based on YIT’s values: respect, cooperation, creativity and
passion. Procedures for occupational safety management are described in
the occupational health and safety principles. In addition, for procurement
activities, there is both a procurement policy and a Supplier Code of
Conduct, which include requirements for personnel and occupational safety.

YIT’s Group Management Team defines the Group’s occupational safety
and personnel targets and monitors their implementation. Businesses

are responsible for implementing the objectives, development plans and
measures. Each supervisor has a responsibility for their subordinates. The
personnel and occupational safety organisation support business operations
and coordinates development projects and processes.

Measures and progress in 2020

During the financial year, the COVID-19 pandemic caused changes in YIT’s
operating environment as well as in the company’s operating practices and
employee working conditions. The company’s primary focus was on ensuring
the health and safety of personnel and business continuity, especially the
functionality and resourcing of construction sites. The task force formed in
the spring coordinated the instructions throughout the Group and ensured
an open and regular dialogue with personnel representatives. YIT actively
participated in cooperation with the national and regional authorities, labour
market organisations, occupational health care and other actors in the
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construction industry to share information and develop best practices, for
example, for tracing infection chains in the construction site environment.
Business travel between countries was minimised and personnel mainly
switched to remote work according to local guidelines. Construction sites
were kept operational, with the exception of a few momentary stops due to
official quarantines. Many proactive measures were taken at both offices and
construction sites to ensure a safe working environment. During the year,
202 COVID-19 infections of the Group’s own personnel were reported.

In January-December 2020, the Group employed an average of 7,377
people (7,635). Despite the COVID-19 pandemic, it was possible to provide
summer jobs and internships for 804 young people (888). The share of
women in the personnel was 24% (22). Attending employee figures are used
in reporting the number of personnel.

Compensation and benefits

During the year, YIT executed its remuneration policy, which aims to
strengthen the corporate culture and shareholder value, motivate and
engage personnel, support the recruitment of necessary skills, and promote
the implementation of the strategy. In addition to a fixed salary, YIT has

a project-based and short-term compensations as well as a long-term
incentive programme.

Personnel expenses in 2020 totalled EUR 372 million (406). In response to
temporarily decreased demand and site delays caused by the COVID-19
pandemic, YIT adjusted its costs and furloughed a large part of its fixed
white-collar employees for two weeks between April and August 2020.

More detailed information on remuneration can be found in YIT’s
remuneration report.

GROUP PERSONNEL

PERSONNEL BY REGION

@ Finland 58%
Scandinavia 4%
@ Russia 19%
@ Baltic countries 15%
@ Central European countries 5%

PERSONNEL BY GENDER

@® Women 24%
Men 76%
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Occupational safety

Every employee is entitled to a safe working environment, and YIT invests
heavily in occupational safety and accident prevention.

Measures and progress in 2020

During the financial year, occupational safety activities focused especially

on the prevention of the challenges caused by the COVID-19 pandemic.
Sites focused on a good level of hygiene and ensuring a safe working
environment, even under exceptional circumstances. In Finland, among other
things, a pilot of expanded weekly reporting was launched at eight different
construction sites, the purpose of which was to pay special attention to
topics related to hygiene, health and the ability to work in weekly reporting at
construction sites.

Occupational safety reporting and monitoring were developed during the
year. In order to develop transparency and a preventive culture related to
occupational safety, YIT began to actively monitor dangerous situations
related to occupational safety. During the year, more than 500 dangerous
situations were reported, and, as desired, the number of reported incidents
increased significantly from the previous year. In addition, the introduction
of a digital tool for occupational safety observations continued in three
operating countries after Finland, and the reporting of the observations
was extended to include subcontractors. Since the beginning of 2020, YIT
has renewed its accident reporting practices encompassing both its own
personnel and subcontractors. The aim is to lead the safety development of
the industry to a more comprehensive and transparent direction.

According to the new reporting model, the Group’s combined accident
frequency rate was 9.8 (10.7). The number of accidents decreased
significantly in the spring due to the COVID-19 pandemic, but returned to
its previous level during the summer and autumn. The combined accident
frequency rate decreased from the previous year.
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In May, YIT participated in the Occupational Safety Week of Confederation of
Finnish Construction Industries RT throughout the Group.

The target level of site visits, aimed to emphasise the management’s
commitment, was adjusted in the spring following the COVID-19 pandemic,

but despite the pandemic the number of site visits was higher than expected.

Occupational safety trainings were organised as planned, although the
implementation took place online due to the pandemic. During the year, a
new occupational safety training for the pre-design phase was started, which
was completed by more than 400 supervisors.

The emphasis on occupational safety and implementation outside the
construction sites also continued, as each employee took an occupational
safety pledge as part of the annual performance and development
discussions.

ACCIDENT FREQUENCY
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Personnel’s occupational well-being and competence
development

YIT wants to be an attractive employer and offer equal opportunities to
its employees. YIT takes care of the competence and well-being of its
personnel.

Measures and progress in 2020

YIT conducts an annual Voice personnel survey, which monitors personnel
well-being and thoughts. Employee satisfaction developed positively, as
98% of comparable results improved from the previous year. For example,
the Spirit index, which describes cooperation and employee satisfaction,
exceeded the set target level by one percentage point and was 77% (75).
Satisfaction among trainees also remained high, as 97% (99) would like to
work at YIT in the future. According to the Sustainability index related to
ethical activities, personnel development opportunities and values, 77% (86)
rated the company'’s business as good or excellent. Reconciliation between
work and leisure was rated as good, and the result rose slightly from the
previous year.

The results of the personnel survey in relation to the comparison group
showed that at YIT, cooperation between units, support received from one’s
supervisor and development opportunities were perceived to be better.
Conversely, for example, the ability of employees to influence the customer
experience was perceived to be weaker than the top of the comparison
group.

In order to develop and maintain the competence of personnel, the
company organises a variety of trainings. In addition, annual performance
and development discussions cover individual career opportunities and
competence development needs.
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The COVID-19 pandemic moved training to the online environment. Despite
the situation, all planned training was arranged, and, for example, about
300 supervisors (183) participated in various supervisor trainings. In order
to support the changed working methods, the company launched remote
working training for all personnel, focusing on, among other things, the
employee’s self-knowledge, managing their own work and interaction skills.

During the year, significant efforts were made to increase personnel
awareness and understanding of key sustainability themes. In Finland, regular
information sessions were held for personnel and sustainability was strongly
integrated into internal communications throughout the Group. Personnel
were extensively trained in environmental reporting and carbon footprint
calculation, and each segment incorporated sustainability objectives into their
annual plans. In addition, the management of the Group and the segments
completed a three-part sustainability training.

YIT invests in supervisory work and during the year focused especially on
open information flow. The Supervisor index, which is monitored annually,
developed positively and rose to 79% (77). In addition, in Finland, the
possibility for supervisors to grant absence was expanded so that the
organisation could operate as flexibly as possible in suddenly changing
situations.

YIT also aims to invest in internal job rotation and career development.
During the year, the focus was especially on the career rotation of personnel
released from large completed projects.

Personnel turnover remained at the previous year’s level and was 13.3%
(13.4). The turnover rate including only resignations at own request was
7.0% (7.3).

PERSONNEL COMMITMENT INDEX (%)
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RESPONSIBLE PROCUREMENT, HUMAN RIGHTS AND THE
PREVENTION OF CORRUPTION, BRIBERY AND GREY ECONOMY

YIT is committed to good corporate governance and responsible business
principles, for example, by following responsible tax practices, preventing
corruption, investing in risk management and committing to the prevention
of the grey economy. YIT’s operations are ethical and transparent, and YIT’s
responsibility requirements apply to the entire supply chain. The company
has a zero tolerance policy regarding the grey economy.

YIT is committed to respecting labour and human rights in its own operations
and supply chain and aims to identify related risks. The company takes

care of labour rights and ensures that all employees are treated fairly. The
employees have freedom of association, and in Finland 84.3% (84.5) and

in the Group as a whole 48.3% (49.3) of the personnel were covered by
collective agreements. YIT does not tolerate harassment or bullying in the
workplace.

The Code of Conduct is the basis for the fight against corruption, bribery and
the grey economy and describes the general principles of the human rights
policy. YIT has a risk management policy and corporate security principles in
place. With regard to procurement activities, there are both a procurement
policy and operating principles for YIT's partners (Supplier Code of Conduct),
which guide activities in the field of human rights, corruption, corruption and
the fight against the grey economy.

YIT Group’s Group Management Team has a strategic responsibility in the
prevention of corruption, bribery and the grey economy. In addition, the
Group Management Team is responsible for respecting human rights and
responsible procurement at the strategic level. The internal audit organisation
supports the management in the development and supervision of risk
management, internal control and good corporate governance.

The Group’s business development function has a risk management

and corporate security organisation, which is responsible for developing
the Group’s corporate security practices. It also has a procurement
corporate responsibility team that assists the procurement organisation
and construction sites in Finland in, for example, responsible subcontractor
practices by training and advising and conducting internal audits. The
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procurement function is responsible for overseeing the human rights issues
of subcontractors and the supply chain. The businesses have a responsibility
to comply with YIT’s Code of Conduct and good corporate governance

in operational activities. Respect for human rights is a matter for all YIT
personnel.

In addition, YIT is committed to complying with data protection requirements.
Each YIT employee is responsible for compliance with data protection in their
own duties. YIT has a data protection policy that describes YIT’s personal
data processing principles. YIT’s data protection organisation is responsible
for ensuring that operations comply with the Data Protection Regulation and
assists in matters related to data protection.

Measures and progress in 2020

During the financial year, the development of good corporate governance
and responsible operating practices continued. The harmonisation of project
risk management started. The procurement’s corporate responsibility team
harmonised performance monitoring indicators related to subcontracting
chaining, and the new indicators will be introduced in Finland and the CEE
countries in 2021. In addition, the preliminary site induction was updated and
information on the YIT Ethics Channel whistleblowing channel was added.

The number of corporate security investigations increased from the previous
year and was 84 (59). 31% of the investigations, meaning 26, led to the
termination of the contracts. The increase is explained by the increase in
cases related to international procurement especially in large projects.

Nine corporate security training sessions were held during the year, and
120 people from all businesses participated. Around 80% of YIT’s personnel
completed the Code Il online training as part of the orientation.

As part of the annual planning, YIT created a roadmap for responsible
procurement for 2020-2022. The roadmap guides the development of
procurement responsibility and includes, among other things, operational and
strategic measures. Responsible procurement is coordinated by a working
group that includes, in addition to procurement management, representatives
from sustainability and corporate security organisations.

As a follow-up to the master’s thesis on responsible procurement carried

out in 2019, YIT launched a project in late 2020 to promote responsible
procurement and prevent the grey economy. The purpose of the project is to
investigate the employment rights of non-EU, third-country nationals working
on YIT’s construction sites in Finland and the implementation of the working
conditions of all foreign workers. Following the survey of the current situation,
an action plan will be drawn up to improve the monitoring of labour rights
and to achieve fair and equal working conditions for employees.

Supply chain management is a key part of responsible sourcing. At the end of
2020, YIT decided to launch a project to harmonise the principles of supplier
management during 2021-2022. The purpose of a Group-wide unified
supplier management is to strengthen YIT’s ability to steer its supply chain in
connection with, among other things, the sustainable development themes.

The COVID-19 pandemic stopped YIT’s supplier audits and visits, which
delayed the development of supplier audits until 2021.

YIT updated its Supplier Code of Conduct to include more specific
requirements related to human rights, occupational safety and the
environment. An updated Supplier Code of Conduct is attached to each
subcontract and material order. The unified document was introduced in
all of YIT’s operating countries. In addition, information on human rights in
supply chains was added to the management system.

INVESTIGATIONS REGARDING POTENTIAL
CRIMES, MISCONDUCT OR OTHER DEVIATIONS
RELATED TO CORPORATE SECURITY (UNITS)

100

80

o

2018! 2019 2020

'include discontinued operations
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KEY SUSTAINABILITY INDICATORS

SDG Indicator Unit 2020 2019 2018
SUSTAINABLE URBAN DEVELOPMENT
Net impact The Upright Project +0.2 - -
model
1 CUMATE ENVIRONMENT
AGTON Energy consumption GWh 307.6 334.9 910.5'
@ Emissions tCO2e 71,794 100,564 225,487"
Scope 1 tCO2e 39,776 41,682 171,427
Scope 2 (market-based) tCO2e 24,899 47,692 54,060'
1 55?&'.’}'.%'%%‘.. Scope 3 (waste and business flights) tCO2e 7,119 11,192 -
e Emissions intensity
m Own operations (Scope 1, Scope 2 and Scope 3) tCO2e/revenue M€ 23.4 29.7 -
Self-developed projects (materials) kgCO2e/m2/year 9? 10 -
Waste 1000 tonnes 107 148 -
Sorting rate (Finland) % 708 46 -
T SOCIAL AND PERSONNEL MATTERS
EGONOMIG GROWTH Accident frequency rate, combined (YIT personnel and subcontractors) LTIF, rolling 12 months 9.8 10.7 -
/‘/' Fatal accidents (YIT personnel and subcontractors) qty 0 1 1
‘. Personnel survey
Commitment index % 80 7 74
Supervisor index % 79 7 76
Spirit index % 77 75 72
Sustainability index % 77 86 -
Bullying cases % 2.9 3.4 3.7
Personnel turnover %, rolling 12 months 13.3 13.4 16.0
e RESPONSIBLE PROCUREMENT, HUMAN RIGHTS AND THE FIGHT AGAINST CORRUPTION, BRIBERY AND THE GREY ECONOMY
16 i Gode of Conduct raning P ) = o
z Investigations regarding potential crimes, misconduct or other deviations related to corporate security qty 84 59! 71!
——3 Compliance with the Contractor’s Obligations Act (Finland):
Subcontracting agreements qty approx. 8,900 approx 6,800' approx. 8,700'
Projects qty 166 1311 1417

"Includes also discontinued operations.

2The company updated its calculation method during 2020 and carried out the calculation on a project-by-project basis at the design phase. The change in the calculation method will result in a maximum difference of 13% compared to 2019, with lower results according to the
updated method.

5The company developed and expanded the coverage of waste reporting during 2020. Consequently, the figures for previous years are not fully comparable.

More detailed sustainability indicators are reported in a separate GRI index and calculation methods of the indicators are described in section Definitions of non-financial key performance indicators.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The starting point for YIT’s operations is ethics and adherence to good
corporate governance. Detailed information on the company’s corporate
governance and remuneration can be read from separate Corporate
Governance Statement and Remuneration report.

RESOLUTIONS PASSED AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Annual General Meeting of YIT Corporation held on 12 March 2020
adopted the 2019 financial statements and discharged the members of the
Board of Directors and the President and CEO from liability. The Annual
General Meeting decided on the dividend payout, the composition of the
Board of Directors and their fees, the election of the auditor and its fees as
well as authorising the Board of Directors to decide on the repurchase of
company shares and share issues.

Dividend payment

It was decided that a dividend of EUR 0.28 be paid per share, or a total of
approximately EUR 58.5 million, as proposed by the Board of Directors,
and that the dividend will be paid in two instalments. No dividend will be
paid on treasury shares. The first instalment of EUR 0.14 per share was
paid to the shareholders who were registered in the shareholders’ register
maintained by Euroclear Finland Oy on the dividend record date of

16 March 2020. It was decided that dividends for this instalment were
paid on 7 April 2020. The second instalment of EUR 0.14 per share was
paid in October 2020. The second instalment of the dividend was paid to
shareholders who were registered in the shareholders’ register maintained
by Euroclear Finland Oy on the dividend record date, which, together with
the payment date, was decided by the Board of Directors in its meeting
scheduled for 18 September 2020.

In addition, it was decided that the Annual General Meeting authorise the
Board of Directors to decide, at its discretion, on the payment of an extra
dividend of no more than EUR 0.12 per share from the unrestricted equity.
When considering the decision, the Board of Directors took into account
the completion of the Nordic paving and mineral aggregates businesses
transaction announced on 4 July 2019, and its conditions. The Board of
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Directors proposed that the authorisation is valid until the opening of the next
Annual General Meeting.

Remuneration policy

Remuneration policy was presented to the Annual General Meeting. The
Annual General Meeting resolved to support the presented policy.

Composition of the Board of Directors and their fees

The Annual General Meeting resolved to elect a Chairman, Vice Chairman
and six ordinary members to the Board of Directors for a term ending

at the close of the next Annual General Meeting following their election,
namely: Harri-Pekka Kaukonen re-elected as the Chairman, Eero Helibvaara
re-elected as the Vice Chairman and Alexander Ehrnrooth, Frank Hyldmar,
Olli-Petteri Lehtinen, Kristina Pentti-von Walzel, Barbara Topolska and Tiina
Tuomela re-elected as members.

It was resolved that the members of the Board of Directors be paid the
following fixed annual fees for the term of office ending at the conclusion of
the next Annual General Meeting:
e Chairman of the Board: EUR 100,000
e \/ice Chairman and Chairmen of the permanent Committees: EUR
70,000, unless the same person is Chairman of the Board or Vice
Chairman of the board and
e members EUR 50,000

In addition, it was decided that the award and payment of the fixed annual
fee be contingent on the Board members committing to purchasing directly,
based on the resolution of the Annual General Meeting, YIT Corporation
shares amounting to 40% of the fixed annual fee from a regulated market
(Nasdag Helsinki Ltd) at a price determined by public trading. The shares
were purchased within two weeks of the publication of the interim report for
the period 1 January =31 March 2020.

In addition to the fixed annual fee, the Board members are paid a meeting
fee of EUR 800 per meeting to Board member living in Finland and a
meeting fee of EUR 2,000 per meeting to member living elsewhere in
Europe. Additionally, it was decided that EUR 800 be paid per permanent or

temporary committee meeting to a committee member living in Finland and
EUR 2,000 to a committee member living elsewhere in Europe. Per diems
are paid for trips in Finland and abroad in accordance with YIT Corporation’s
and tax authorities’ travelling compensation regulations.

The members of the Shareholders’ Nomination Board, including the expert
member, will be paid a meeting fee of EUR 800 per a Board meeting and the
Chairman be paid EUR 1,600 per a Board meeting.

Election of the auditor and their fee

PricewaterhouseCoopers, Authorised Public Accountants, was elected as
the company’s auditor, with Markku Katajisto, Authorised Public Accountant,
as the chief auditor. The auditor’s fees will be paid according to the invoices
approved by the company.

Repurchase of the company’s own shares

The Annual General Meeting authorised the Board of Directors to decide on
the purchase of company shares as proposed by the Board of Directors. The
authorisation covers the purchasing of a maximum of 21,000,000 company
shares using the company’s unrestricted equity. The authorisation reverses
the authorisation to purchase the company’s own shares issued by the
Annual General Meeting on 12 March 2019. The authorisation is valid until
30 June 2021.

Share issues

The Annual General Meeting authorised the Board of Directors to decide
on share issues as proposed by the Board of Directors. The authorisation
can be used in full or partially by issuing shares in the company in one or
more tranches so that the maximum number of shares issued is a total of
42,000,000. The Board of Directors has the right to decide on all terms and
conditions of issuing shares. The authorisation reverses the authorisation to
decide on share issues by the Annual General Meeting on 12 March 2019.
The authorisation is valid until 30 June 2021.
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ORGANISATION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

YIT Corporation’s Board of Directors held its organisational meeting on

12 March 2020. In the meeting, the Board decided on the composition of the
Personnel Committee, the Audit Committee as well as the Investment and
Project Committee.

From among its number, the Board elected Harri-Pekka Kaukonen as
chairman and Eero Helidvaara and Tiina Tuomela as members of the
Personnel Committee. The task of the Personnel Committee is to assist the
Board of Directors in issues related to the nomination and remuneration of key
personnel within YIT Group. Among other things, the Personnel Committee
prepares the proposals for the Group’s corporate culture and HR policy
development, remuneration and incentive schemes, the rules for performance-
based bonuses and performance-based bonuses paid to the management.
The Committee’s tasks furthermore include the identification of talent, the
development of key personnel and management’s succession planning.

From among its number, the Board elected Olli-Petteri Lehtinen as chairman
and Alexander Ehrnrooth, Frank Hyldmar and Kristina Pentti-von Walzel as
members of the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee assists the Board
of Directors in the supervision of the Group’s accounting and reporting
processes. It is tasked with, for instance, overseeing the company’s financial
reporting process, the effectiveness of internal control, internal auditing and
risk management systems, and with evaluating the audit. The Committee
participates in the preparation of the Group’s financing policy, financing plan
and financing arrangements. Among other things, the Committee reviews
the company’s financial statements and half-year and interim reports, and
monitors auditing. It also evaluates compliance with laws and regulations and
follows the Group’s financial position.

From among its number, the Board elected Eero Helidvaara as chairman

and Alexander Ehrnrooth, Harri-Pekka Kaukonen and Barbara Topolska as
members of the Investment and Project Committee. The Investment and
Project Committee reviews and prepares for the Board of Directors’ decision,
inter alia, significant tenders, projects and investments as well as monitors
portfolio development, reporting and risk management.
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SHARE-BASED INCENTIVE SCHEME

The Board of Directors of YIT Corporation decided on 16 March 2020, to
launch a new long-term share-based incentive scheme for key persons.

The earning periods of the incentive scheme are for three years. A potential
bonus will be determined on the basis of the indicators decided annually by
the Board of Directors of YIT Corporation for each earning period and their
target levels. Return on capital employed, absolute TSR (Total Shareholder
Return) and the Group’s Net Promoter Score (NPS) have been set for 2020-
2022. The Board of Directors also decides on the approximately 260 key
persons from different YIT countries to be included in the incentive scheme
for each earning period.

After the three-year earning period and the confirmation of the annual report,
the shares are transferred to key persons employed by the company.

A maximum of approximately 2,100,000 gross shares can be distributed
each year. Furthermore, the Board of Directors recommends that the Group
Management Team member aims to hold along with the long-term incentive
program YIT shares with the value of half of his/her annual salary as long as
he/she is the member of the Group Management Team. The President and
CEO aims to hold YIT shares with the value equivalent to his annual salary.
Under all circumstances, the Board of Directors has the right to amend the
bonuses in a reasonable manner.

The target of YIT’s remuneration policy is to strengthen the company culture
and shareholder value creation, motivate and commit personnel, support to
retain and recruit the talents needed, as well as promote strategy execution.

CHANGES IN COMPANY MANAGEMENT

On 1 April 2020, YIT announced the following changes in the Group
Management Team: following the closing of the sale of the Nordic paving and
mineral aggregates businesses, Heikki Vuorenmaa, Executive Vice President,
Paving segment, moved to the buyer of the business and thereby left YIT.

In addition, it was announced that Esa Neuvonen, EVP, Business premises
segment and Partnership properties segment, would focus on leading the
Partnership properties segment going forward and that Tom Ekman had
been appointed as EVP, Business premises and member of the Management
Team, as of 1 May 2020.

On 28 October 2020, YIT announced that Kari Kauniskangas will leave

his position as the President and CEO of YIT Corporation. The Board of
Directors embarked upon the search process for a new CEO, and appointed
Antti Inkila, EVP of Housing Finland and CEE segment of YIT, as interim
President and CEQ effective from 23 October 2020. Marko Oinas, VP,
Strategy and Development of Housing Finland and CEE segment at YIT, is
appointed as EVP of the segment and member of the Management Team
while Antti Inkila serves as interim President and CEO.

YIT announced on 14 December 2020 that Esa Neuvonen, Executive Vice
President, Partnership properties segment, has announced to resign from the
company to work for another employer. YIT Corporation’s Board of Directors
has nominated Timo Lehmus, SVP, Development of Partnership properties
segment, to act as interim Executive Vice President of the segment and
member of the Group Management Team. The appointment of Timo Lehmus
was effective as of 15 December 2020.

The company announced on 21 December 2020 that YIT's Board of
Directors has appointed Markku Moilanen as YIT Corporation’s President
and CEO. He shall take up his position determined at a later date, but at the
latest by 1 July 2021.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

The purpose of YIT’s risk management is to identify the most significant

risks to the company’s operations and manage them in a balanced way.

Risk management aims to ensure the continuity of YIT’s operations and the
achievement of targets. YIT has a risk management policy that guides the
management of the company’s overall risk position. The policy describes the
main principles of risk management at YIT. The risk management policy is
approved by the Board of Directors of YIT. The Board of Directors guides and
supervises the planning and execution of risk management and approves the

company’s risk-taking ability and risk appetite.

The Group’s President and CEO retains overall responsibility for risk

management. The President and CEQ is responsible for the organisation,
follow-up and implementation of risk management and the development

of the risk management strategy. Business and support functions are
responsible for risk management practices for their own part. The gate model
is utilised in the risk management of projects; each gate includes a risk
review.

Risk management is included in all of the Group’s significant operating,
reporting and management processes. Planning of the risk management,
risk exposure assessment and operating environment analysis are part of
the annual strategy process. In addition, material changes in risks and risk
exposure are reported and monitored on a monthly and quarterly basis in
accordance with the Group’s management and reporting practices. One key
perspective in risk management is to also identify opportunities and actively
take advantage of them.

YIT has categorised the risks that are significant to its operations into
strategic, operational, financial and event risks.

The main characteristics of the internal control and risk management

systems connected with the financial reporting process are presented in the
Corporate Governance Statement.

YIT’s headquarters, Helsinki, Finland
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MOST SIGNIFICANT SHORT-TERM BUSINESS RISKS

Strategic risks

RISK

DESCRIPTION AND IMPACT OF THE RISK

RISK MANAGEMENT

Market risks

* The general economic development, functioning of the financial markets and the political environment in YIT’s operating countries have a
significant impact on the company’s business.

* Negative development in purchasing power, the confidence of consumers and businesses, the availability of financing to consumers or
businesses or general interest rate level can weaken the demand for YIT's products and services. They also impact parameters used for the
fair valuation of certain balance sheet items.

e A drop in prices of assets for sale or held or an increase in investors’ yield requirements would pose a risk for the profitability of the company,
should these factors materialise.

* Changes in customer preferences and in competitors’ offerings pose risks related to the demand for the company’s products and services.

* New competitors, business models and products may pose risks related to the demand for the company’s products and services.

* An increase in price or interest levels, increased rental accommodation supply and/or weakening tenant demand in business premises or the
residential market and better yields of alternative investments could lead to a decrease in investor demand.

* Increased supply and slowdown of population growth or depopulation can pose a local risk for residential demand.

e Continuous monitoring and analysis of market developments.

* Financing and project model solutions implemented with partners.

e Continuous monitoring of yield requirement levels, tender base, situation of sales
and investment portfolio. When the market situation changes, it is reacted to in such
a way that the risk limits associated with production, completed projects and capital
are not exceeded.

* Ensuring competitive products and services corresponding to customer demand.

e Alternative investors and users will be identified for projects under construction
already in the design phase. Projects are designed to be as flexible as possible so

that layouts will serve different groups of customers and users.

Country risks

Finland

* Finland accounts for a significant share of the company’s business, which highlights the significance of Finland’s economic development for
YIT’s business.

* The slowing growth of the Finnish economy, migration and the indebtedness of the public sector may weaken consumers’ purchasing power
and general confidence, which would have a negative impact on the demand for apartments and business premises. An increase in public
sector debt can make it more difficult to finance infrastructure investments, especially in the municipal sector.

* |In Finland, disruptions or significant changes in project financing and housing company loans can affect YIT’s ability to finance construction-
time costs and have indirect impacts on customer demand, especially in the consumer market.

Russia

* There are uncertainty factors related to economic development of Russia in the long term. The volatility of the oil price and the rouble,
changes in legislation, geopolitical tensions and inflation may affect the demand for apartments due to weakening purchasing power and
consumer confidence. Weakening purchasing power and oversupply of housing would also have an impact on the development of residential
prices, should they materialise.

* There are uncertainty factors related to authorities” actions, permit processes and their efficiency. Changes in the federal law regulating the
housing market in Russia may cause a disturbance in companies’ monetary transactions and current contract models and increase capital
employed. The role of banks in monitoring the law has been expanded and the incompleteness of the monitoring process may cause
uncertainty.

¢ Tensions in domestic politics and foreign policy between the EU, USA and Russia may affect construction demand or be visible in the form of
sanctions, for example, that can have an impact on the company’s business.

CEE countries

® There are uncertainty factors related to authorities’ actions, permit processes and their efficiency.

Finland

e Continuous monitoring and analysis of Finland's economic development and public
investments.

* Risks related to project financing and housing company loans are managed by
the efficient allocation of working capital and financial reserves and use of capital,
by shortening lead-times and ensuring sufficient funding capacity. Project funding
models and co-operation with partners are developed continuously.

Russia

e Continuous monitoring and analysis of Russia’s economic development and
legislation.

* Reducing capital employed in Russia in accordance with the company’s strategy.

® Close dialogue with authorities to ensure handovers and the processing of permits.

CEE countries

¢ Close dialogue with authorities to ensure handovers and the processing of permits.

YIT 2020

Annual Review
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Legislation-related * Changes in legislation and authorities” permit processes may slow down the progress of projects, have a negative impact on net debt, e Continuous monitoring of amendments to legislation.
risks increase the need for equity or debt financing or prevent additional funding from being realised. * Active dialogue with stakeholders and authorities.

¢ With regard to individual projects, zoning, building permits and approvals and interpretations by the authorities, among other factors, can

cause risks and, for example, transfer the order book, revenue, profit and cash flow from one quarter or year to another.

Risks related * The company’s operations being geographically dispersed, the large number of agreements and the fixed-term nature of projects can cause e Commitment to good corporate governance through compliance with laws and
to corporate risks related to the prevention of corruption, the grey economy and bribery. regulations.
governance

® The Group’s common Code of Conduct.

* Increasing transparency throughout the Group’s operating countries, development
of common operating methods, internal decision-making authorisations and
targets as well as increasing awareness and the use of internal audits.

* Investigating the backgrounds of partners within the limits provided by local
legislation.

e Approval procedures, selection and auditing of partners and internal audit
practices.

* YIT's Supplier Code of Conduct and its development.

* YIT Ethics Channel, ethical reporting channel.

Risks related to ¢ Global climate change can cause physical, legislative, technical, financial, market and reputation risks to YIT’s business. * Proactive actions and setting ambitious goals to develop operations in a
climate change * Extreme weather, such as considerably higher annual rainfall, may result in increased costs or delayed production processes. sustainable and climate-friendly direction.
¢ Significant changes in legislation, investor demands or customer demand related to climate change or climate change mitigation may impair * Detailed survey of climate risks and opportunities and assessment of impacts.
the company’s operational prerequisites. * Active co-operation with stakeholders to develop alternative building materials.

¢ Costs related to carbon dioxide emissions can create pressure in the supply chain with the construction industry having to move to

alternative building materials and find ways to minimise waste.

Reputation risks * Negative matters, warranted or unwarranted, discussed in public relating to the construction industry or YIT’s operations can decrease trust * Active and open communications with relevant stakeholders.
in the company and cause a significant negative impact on reputation. Such matters include the grey economy, human and labour rights of e Continuous development of the company'’s internal operations, governance
foreign employees and quality problems in construction. model, and risk management in relation to, for example, the prevention of the grey

economy and responsible procurement.
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Operational risks

RISK

DESCRIPTION AND IMPACT OF THE RISK

RISK MANAGEMENT

Project risks

Most of the company’s business is project business, meaning that successful project management plays an integral role. Furthermore, major
business premises and infrastructure projects account for a significant share of the company’s expected operating profit in the coming years,
meaning that successful project management in the projects is integral.

The most significant project management risks are related factors such as project management resources and capabilities, pricing, planning,
scheduling, procurement, cost management and customer behaviour, as well as the management of sales risk in the company’s self-
developed business.

Associated companies and joint ventures involve risks relating to decision making, division of responsibility and financing and any disputes
occurring in business.

Delays in certain building permit processes or handovers can transfer the order book, revenue, profit and cash flow from one quarter or year
to another.

The warranty period associated with construction projects can involve risks.

e Continuously improving project management capability.

* Developing the Group’s shared management system.

e Continuously developing the risk management and transparency of major projects
based on lessons learned from previous projects.

* Developing YIT’s joint financial administration and forecasting systems.

* |n order to manage the warranty and liability period risks, separate gates with
associated measures have been defined in accordance with the gate model. Project

management continues until the risks no longer exist.

Risks related
to contract
and agreement
disputes

The implementation and completion of projects and liabilities and obligations during the warranty and maintenance period can give rise to
disputes that can impair the profitability of the projects.
Additional and alteration work during the project in proportion to the original project package is a risk, especially in target price or price ceiling

contracts.

e Actively influencing the preparation of general terms and conditions for the
construction sector and compliance with them.

* Engaging legal expertise in the preparation of new agreements in line with the valid
guidelines and decision-making authorisation system.

* Developing procurement-related agreement practices.

e Complying with agreements.

Resource and
personnel risks

The availability of the resources needed for the planned production volume might prevent production as planned.

Any overheating of the construction market can have impacts on the prices and availability of resources.

Competitors’ need for resources poses a risk of losing key personnel and expertise.

Changes in the scope of business operations can consume key employees’ time, cause uncertainty among the personnel and activate
competitors to attempt to recruit personnel.

Personnel changes in key positions.

* To support the identification of potential personnel resource risks, YIT annually
creates a proactive personnel and training plan that outlines, in accordance with the
Group’s strategy, the competence needs, personnel needs and potential attrition
due to retirement, for example.

* Plans to also commit personnel in business change situations.

* Competitive and fair remuneration.

* Ensuring a systematic and target-oriented recruitment process.

Risks related

to occupational
safety and human
rights

Risks related to occupational safety are individual, such as various accidents and injuries. Most of the occupational accidents occurring at the
company are related to tripping or slipping when moving around on-site.
Risks related to respecting human rights are associated with working conditions, harassment, racism, discrimination and unethical operating

methods, among other things.

* Preventive occupational safety measures, such as safety planning, safety
observations, on-site safety briefing practices and orientation training.

e Investigation of accidents and dangerous situations and internal communications.

* YIT's Code of Conduct and its development.

® Increasing awareness of human rights.

© YIT Ethics Channel.
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Procurement risks ¢ The high level of subcontracting in the construction industry and specialisation of areas of expertise may involve risks.

® Foreign labour can involve risks, such as the realisation of labour and human rights. The mobility of labour within the EU has grown and the
volume of labour from outside the EU has increased.

* The efficiency of land acquisition and sufficiency of building rights can result in risks due to uncertainties outside of the project, such as
changes in legislation, construction-related requirements and other regulations, interpretations by the authorities, general market development
and availability.

* Availability and delivery disturbances can delay the execution of projects and incur additional costs.

* Matters relating to responsible subcontracting can cause risks and a significant negative impact on reputation. The globalisation of

subcontracting can increase risks.

* The use of subcontracting chains is always subject to permission at YIT.

* Proactive risk management in the design phase of projects and selection of
partners.

e Continuous monitoring of supply chains and partners through information systems
and audits.

* Y[T's Supplier Code of Conduct and its development.

* Supplier requirements relating to labour and human rights.

e Developing the monitoring of foreign labour.

* The efficiency risk of the procurement function is managed as part of project
management, in addition to which the use of standard solutions will be increased.

e Continuous development of matters relating to responsibility in procurement.

Environmental * Operational risks related to environmental issues may be locally significant; for example, in the event of a fuel leak or soil contamination. The

risks most significant acute environmental risks are related to the handling of hazardous materials.

e Construction sites’ operating instructions for risk identification, prevention and
management.
* An environmental risk assessment is conducted in the planning phase for the largest

projects.
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Financial risks

RISK DESCRIPTION AND IMPACT OF RISK RISK MANAGEMENT
Financial risks ¢ The most significant financial risks are related to the availability of financing (additional financing and refinancing), liquidity and development of e Group Treasury ensures that adequate credit facilities and a sufficient number of
foreign exchange rates. funding sources are available and manages actively maturing credit agreements.
* The company regularly has financing needs and an extensive portfolio of financial instruments. The availability of financing may decrease * The aim is to safeguard the sufficiency of financing so that the Group’s liquidity
or the price may increase depending on the current financial market situation and the development of the company’s profitability and /or matches the Group’s total liquidity requirements at all times.

financial situation. The Group’s rouble risk is managed through foreign exchange forward contracts,
* The Group's most significant currency risk is related to rouble-denominated investments in Group companies. used for hedging debt investments in Group companies, among other measures.
The translation risks arising from equity investments is aimed to be managed by

optimising the capital structure of Group companies.

More detailed information about financial risks and their management will be

available in Note 29 of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Reporting risks * Changes in accounting standards and their interpretations may result in changes in YIT’s accounting policies and thereby have an impact on * Risks related to financial reporting are managed with the help of the Group’s
YIT’s financial indicators. accounting manual, financing and tax policy, investment guideline, acquisition
* The project projections on which YIT’s financial reporting is based are estimates of the outcome of projects, which can pose a risk if the instructions, control environment and internal audit.

projection deviates significantly from the final outcome. The company prepares and consistently complies with its defined accounting

principles.

The company prepares analyses and conclusions of agreements.

The company actively monitors the development of accounting standards and

assesses their impact.

Project performance and financial result is projected, recognised as revenue and
controlled in accordance with YIT’s accounting processes and gate model, and
these practices are continuously developed.

® Developing YIT’s joint financial administration and forecasting systems.

Capital efficiency e |f YIT does not successfully manage its capital, this can lead to an excessive increase of capital employed. * The company continuously evaluates its capital employed and allocation to
* YIT's measures to increase balance sheet efficiency can result in write-downs or costs, which may have negative or positive impacts on businesses and makes necessary actions to increase capital efficiency.
results.
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Event risks

RISK DESCRIPTION AND IMPACT OF THE RISK RISK MANAGEMENT
Information system  Increased cybercrime activity can pose risks to the company’s operations and information security. * Enhancing the prevention, detection and resolution of information security
and |r!for|_1'|at|on * Misdemeanours by personnel can cause financial losses to the company or risks to other personnel. deviations.
security risks
* The dependence of business on the uninterrupted functioning of information systems has become more emphasised as the processes e Continuous development of data protection and information security requirements.
become digital. * Guaranteeing project management and resources, as well as the detailed planning
* An information systems reform involves a significant volume of data migrations and replacement of interfaces between systems, and risks can of interfaces and data migrations in system projects.

be involved with regard to succeeding in them.

Pandemic risks * Epidemics or pandemics may have direct or indirect effects on the company’s operations and risks, for example, the availability of personnel, * Active development of the health and safety arrangements of YIT’s construction
personnel falling ill, administrative decisions and the availability of materials as well as the availability or cost of financing. They can lead sites and offices.
to temporary lockdowns or slower progress of construction sites and delays in completions, and, as a result, revenue and profit being * Ensuring the continuity of construction sites and procurement through analyses,
postponed from one quarter or year to another. deputy arrangements, scheduling of work and breaks, seeing to hygiene and active
* Epidemics or pandemics can have an impact on the utilisation rates of properties owned and sold, and thus their values. communication.
* The long-term persistence of a pandemic can affect purchasing decisions and the timing of consumers and investors. * Active dialogue with the authorities.
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LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

DAMAGES RELATED TO THE ASPHALT CARTEL

On 23 November 2020, the Supreme Court announced its decision on the
last matter pending before courts against YIT concerning the damages
related to the asphalt cartel. The Supreme Court approved for the most part
YIT’s claims related to the question on the share of value added tax. The
Supreme Court’s decision is in line with the Supreme Court’s earlier decisions
regarding the issue.

YIT has reached a settlement with all other claimants whose claims against
YIT were pending before the Supreme Court. The settlements were made

in line with the legal principles set out in the Supreme Court’s judgements.

In addition, YIT has settled earlier all the matters pending before the District
Court against the company. The settlements were made in line with the legal
principles set out in the judgements of the Helsinki Court of Appeal and the
Supreme Court. Pursuant to the settlements, these claimants have dropped
their claims.

All the proceedings pending before courts against YIT concerning the
damages related to the asphalt cartel have now ended.
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QUALITY CONCERNS RELATED TO READY-MIXED CONCRETE

Ready-mixed concrete, among other things, has been used in construction
business as a raw material. During the year 2016, especially in some
infrastructure projects, suspicions arose that the ready-mixed concrete used
in Finland would not entirely fulfil the predetermined quality requirements.

The Hospital District of Southwest Finland presented claims for damages to
YIT relating to the quality of the ready-mixed concrete as well as the work
performance in the project for the construction of the concrete deck of the
T3 building of Turku University Hospital.

YIT has in April 2019 signed a contract with the concrete supplier on
agreeing the dispute between YIT and the concrete supplier.

The Hospital District of Southwest Finland has on 3 June 2020 filed a
summons in the District Court of Southwest Finland against YIT and
presented claims for damages etc. to YIT relating to the project for the
construction of the concrete deck of the T3 building of Turku University
Hospital. The capital amount of the claims totals approximately EUR 20
million. The company deems the claims for damages etc. unfounded.

After the reporting period, YIT has submitted its response to the Hospital
District’s claims to the District Court on 29 January 2021. In its response YIT
has denied the Hospital District’s claims as unfounded.

Konepaja, Helsinki, Finland

INVESTOR
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OUTLOOK AND GUIDANCE

SHORT-TERM MARKET OUTLOOK

Housing

In Finland, consumer activity is expected to stay at a good level, and
institutional investors are returning more active. The availability of housing
company loan financing is expected to remain stable but challenging. Access
to consumer mortgages is delayed. Uncertainty caused by the COVID-19
pandemic continues.

In the Baltic countries, demand is expected to remain stable, and in the
Central European countires, demand is expected to be at a good level.
Uncertainty caused by the COVID-19 pandemic continues in both regions.

In Russia, consumer demand is expected to decrease due to seasonality and
normalising consumer behaviour after a very strong peak in 2020. Demand
continues to focus on reliable developers. The State’s interest subsidy
programme is to continue until June 2021, which continues to support
consumer demand.

FINLAND

RUSSIA

BALTIC COUNTRIES

HOUSING

Business premises and Partnership properties

In Finland, real estate investor demand and readiness to make decisions,
particularly for office and logistics properties, is starting to recover. The
contracting market is expected to remain stable but competition is
intensifying and adding pressure on price levels. Yield requirements for
commercial projects are expected to be impacted by accelerating online
sales and uncertainty caused by the COVID-19 pandemic.

In the Baltic countries, the contracting market is recovering, but uncertainty
caused by the COVID-19 pandemic continues. Competition is expected to
stay intense.

In the Central European countires, property investors are increasingly
cautious due to the uncertainty caused by the COVID-19 pandemic. Rental
demand is slowing down due to the uncertainty caused by the COVID-19
pandemic.

BUSINESS PREMISES AND PARTNERSHIP PROPERTIES

Infrastructure

In Finland, the uncertainty is expected to remain, and demand is expected
to continue subdued due to delays in the development of infrastructure
projects. State stimulus packages are expected to start supporting the
sector from 2021 onwards. In the Baltic countries, the contracting market is
expected to start recovering.

In Sweden, the market is expected to remain at a good level due to traffic
infrastructure development programmes and urbanisation development.
There are large-scale road and railway projects and industrial investments
ongoing and in preparation.

INFRASTRUCTURE

SWEDEN

Market situation: [ll Good [l Normal [l Weak

YIT 2020 | Annual Review
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GUIDANCE

In 2021, housing completions are expected to decrease in Housing
Finland and CEE compared to 2020. In Housing Russia, solid underlying
performance is estimated to continue. In Business premises, performance
is expected to stabilise. Project management issues in the Infrastructure
segment are burdening earnings but those issues are expected to be
resolved as the year progresses. In Partnership properties, portfolio
development is expected to continue.

YIT expects its full-year 2021 adjusted operating profit to be higher than
in 2020 (EUR 85 million). The fourth quarter is expected to be clearly the
strongest.

The result is dependent on certain project completions and contract closings
towards the end of the year. Temporary shutdowns or slower progress on
construction sites and delayed completions due to the COVID-19 pandemic
could lead to the postponement of revenue and profit from one quarter or
year to another. The pandemic may also lead to changes in market yields,
which may have impacts on the fair value of the investments.
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SHARES AND SHAREHOLDERS

YIT Corporation’s shares are listed on Nasdaq Helsinki. The company has
one series of shares. Each share carries one vote and confers an equal right
to a dividend.

SHARE CAPITAL AND NUMBER OF SHARES

YIT Corporation’s share capital and number of shares remained unchanged
during the reporting period.

In the beginning of 2020, YIT’s share capital was EUR 149,716,748.22
(149,716,748.22) and the number of shares outstanding at the end of the
reporting period 31 December 2020 was 209,083,556 (208,768,363).

TREASURY SHARES AND AUTHORISATIONS OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

On 31 December 2020, YIT Corporation held 2,016,297 treasury shares.

The Annual General Meeting authorised the Board of Directors on 12 March
2020 to decide on the purchase of company shares as proposed by the
Board of Directors. The authorisation covers the purchasing of a maximum
of 21,000,000 company shares using the company’s unrestricted equity. The
authorisation is valid until 30 June 2021.

The Board of Directors decided on 29 April 2020 and on 28 August 2020 on
a directed share issue for the reward payment from the 2017 earnings period
under YIT Group’s Incentive Scheme and Lemminkainen’s Performance
Share Program reward payment from the 2016 performance period as
agreed in connection with the merger of YIT and Lemminkéainen. On 29 April
2020 and on 28 August 2020 YIT announced that in the share issues, in
total 315,193 YIT Corporation shares were issued and conveyed without
consideration to the key persons participating in the incentive scheme
according to the terms and conditions of the incentive scheme.
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OWNERSHIP STRUCTURE AND OWNERS

At the end of 2020 the number of registered shareholders was 47,791
(43,178). A total of 13% (15) of the shares were owned by nominee-
registered and non-Finnish investors.

During the reporting period, YIT did not receive any flagging naotifications.

The information is based on the shareholder register on 31 December 2020
maintained by Euroclear Finland Ltd. Each nominee-registered shareholder
is recorded in the share register as a single shareholder. The ownership

of many investors can be managed through one nominee-registered
shareholder.

Major shareholders

% of shares

Shareholder Number of shares and votes
1 Tercero Invest AB 24,650,000 11.68
Varma Mutual Pension
2 Insurance Company 15,945,975 7.55
3 PNT Group Oy 15,296,799 7.25
4 Conficap Oy 8,886,302 4.21
5  Pentti Heikki Oskari Estate 8,146,215 3.86
lImarinen Mutual Pension
6  Insurance Company 5,984,339 2.83
Forstén Noora Eva Johanna 5,115,529 2.42
Elo Mutual Pension Insurance
8  Company 4,396,850 2.08
9 Herlin Antti 3,445,180 1.63
10 Pentti Lauri Olli Samuel 3,398,845 1.61
11 Fideles Oy 3,188,800 1.51
12 Foreningen Konstsamfundet r.f. 3,000,000 1.42
13 The State Pension Fund 2,926,674 1.39
Pentti-von Walzel Anna Eva
14 Kristina 2,760,599 1.31
16 Pentti-Kortman Eva Katarina 2,715,410 1.29
200 largest shareholders total 151,363,609 71.70
Nominee registered 21,538,449 10.20
Other shares 38,197,795 18.10
Total 211,099,853 100.00

GOVERNANCE
STATEMENTS
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YIT’s headquarters, Helsi
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Ownership by the number of shares held

Number of Number of Number of

shares shareholders % shares %
1-100 12,623 26.58 698,079 0.33
101-500 17,445 36.73 4,901,047 2.32
501-1,000 7,472 16.73 5,943,688 2.82
1,001-5,000 8,079 17.01 18,073,800 8.56
5,001-10,000 1,082 2.28 7,856,502 3.72
10,001-50,000 642 1.35 12,651,672 5.99
50,001-100,000 60 0.13 4,197,965 1.99
100,001-500,000 57 0.12 11,634,895 5.51
500,001- 31 0.07 145,142,305 68.76
Total 47,491 100.00 211,099,853 100.00

Board of Directors’ and management’s shareholding

Number of shares % of share capital

Board of Directors 2,879,487 1.36%
Interim President and CEO 28,849 0.01%
Deputy to the President and CEO 63,653 0.03%
Total 2,971,989 1.40%

Further information on the shareholdings of the Board of Directors and
management can be found in the Corporate Governance Statement.

In addition, YIT’s manager’s transactions during the reporting period have
been published as stock exchange releases, and they are available on
YIT’s website.

Ownership by sector

~ @ Nominee registered and non-Finnish holders 13%

Households 32%
General government 14%

Financial and insurance corporations 6%

Non-profit institutions 4%

Non-financial corporations and housing
corporations 31%
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DIVIDEND

The Annual General Meeting of YIT Corporation held on 12 March 2020
decided that a dividend of EUR 0.28 be paid per share, or a total of
approximately EUR 58.5 million, as proposed by the Board of Directors, and
that the dividend will be paid in two instalments. No dividend will be paid

on treasury shares. In addition, the Annual General Meeting authorised the
Board of Directors to decide, at its discretion, on the payment of an extra
dividend of no more than EUR 0.12 per share from the unrestricted equity.
When considering the decision, the Board of Directors took into account
the completion of the Nordic paving and mineral aggregates businesses
transaction announced on 4 July 2019, and its conditions.

The first instalment of EUR 0.14 per share was paid on 7 April 2020. The
second instalment of EUR 0.14 per share was paid on 6 October 2020.

On 18 September 2020, YIT Corporation’s Board of Directors decided on
the payment of the additional dividend of EUR 0.12 per share. The additional

dividend was paid on 6 October 2020.

The total amount of dividends paid by YIT in 2020 was EUR 0.40 per share.

INVESTOR
RELATIONS

As Oy Fredika, Firdo, Klyyga ja Boole, Helsinki, Finland
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KEY FIGURES AND DEFINITIONS

SHARE-RELATED KEY FIGURES

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
IFRS IFRS IFRS IFRS IFRS
Earnings per share EUR 0.13 0.07 0.19 0.45 -0.06
Earnings per share, diluted EUR 0.13 0.07 0.19 0.44 -0.06
Earnings per share, continuing operations EUR -0.04 0.02 0.23 n/a n/a
Dividend per share EUR 0.14* 0.40 0.27 0.25 0.22
Equity per share EUR 4.40 5.08 5.00 4.49 4.49
Dividend/earnings % 107.7 571.9 144.7 56.6 -388.8
Effective dividend yield % 2.84 6.71 5.28 3.92 2.90
Price/earnings multiple (P/E) % 37.9 85.2 26.9 14.2 -134.1
Share price trend
Average price EUR 5.10 5.36 5.70 6.94 6.14
Low EUR 3.58 4.77 4.56 5.97 4.32
High EUR 712 6.20 7.25 8.09 8.07
Price at 31 Dec EUR 4.93 5.96 5.11 6.37 7.59
Market capitalisation at 31 Dec EUR million 1,031 1,244 1,073 801 953
Weighted average number of shares outstanding 1,000 208,966 210,492 203,002 125,730 125,577
Weighted average number of shares outstanding, diluted 1,000 209,536 211,450 208,778 127,636 127,366
Number of shares outstanding at 31 Dec 1,000 209,084 208,768 210,048 125,815 125,577

* Board of Directors’ proposal to the Annual General Meeting.
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KEY FINANCIAL FIGURES
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
IFRS IFRS IFRS IFRS IFRS
Revenue EUR million 3,069 3,392 3,138 1,994 1,678
of which activities outside Finland EUR million 824 844 879 611 445
Operating profit EUR million 35 80 100 86 18
% of revenue % 1 2 3 4 1
Result for the financial year EUR million 27 15 39 57 -7
% of revenue % 1 0 1 3 0
Equity ratio % 33 34 38 33 31
Net interest-bearing debt** EUR million 628 862 563 453 599
Net debt/adjusted EBITDA, rolling 12 months 5 4 n/a n/a n/a
Gearing ratio* % 68 81 54 80 112
ROCE, rolling 12 months** 8] 10 n/a n/a n/a
Order book as at 31 Dec EUR million 3,628 4,131 4,286 2,913 3,048
of which activities outside Finland EUR million 988 1,175 1,000 803 973
Gross capital expenditures EUR million 3il 32 n/a n/a n/a
% of revenue % 1 1 n/a n/a n/a
Operating cash flow after investments EUR million 336 51 149 164 -43
Return on equity % 8 1 4 10 -1
Number of employees at 31 Dec 7,045 7,417 7,556 5,427 5,261

*YIT has chaged the definition of gearing and net debt on January 1, 2018. The figures of year 2017 are adjusted.
**YIT has changed the definitions of the key figures on January 1, 2020 so that the impact of IFRS16 has been taken into account. The figures of year 2019 are adjusted.
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DEFINITIONS OF KEY FIGURES

Definitions of financial key performance indicators

Key figure

Definition

Reason for use

Operating profit

Result for the period before taxes and finance expenses and finance income equalling to the subtotal
presented in the consolidated income statement.

Operating profit shows result generated by operating activities excluding finance and tax
related items.

Adjusted operating profit

Operating profit excluding adjusting items.

Adjusted operating profit is presented in addition to operating profit to reflect the
underlying core business performance and to enhance comparability from period to
period. Management believes that this alternative performance measure provides
meaningful supplemental information by excluding items not part of YIT’s core business
operations thus improving comparability from period to period.

Adjusting items

Adjusting items are material items outside ordinary course of business such as write-down of inventories,
impairment of goodwill, fair value changes related to redemption liability of non-controlling interests,
integration costs related to merger, transaction costs related to merger, costs, compensations and
reimbursements related to court proceedings, write-downs related to non-core businesses, operating profit
from businesses to be closed down, gains or losses arising from the divestments of a business or part of a
business, costs on the basis of statutory personnel negotiations and adaption measures, and cost impacts
of the fair value adjustments from purchase price allocation, such as fair value adjustments on acquired
inventory, depreciation of fair value adjustments on acquired property, plant and equipment and amortisation
of fair value adjustments on acquired intangible assets relating to business combination accounting under the
provisions of IFRS 3, referred to as purchase price allocation (“PPA”).

(YIT has changed the definition of Adjusting items on January 1, 2020 to include fair value changes related to
redemption liability of non-controlling interests).

Capital employed

Capital employed includes tangible and intangible assets, shares in associates and joint ventures,
investments, inventories, trade receivables and other non-interest bearing receivables, provisions, advance
payments and other non-interest bearing debts excluding items related to taxes, finance items and profit
distribution.

Capital employed presents capital employed of segment's operative business.

Interest-bearing debt

Non-current borrowings, current borrowings and non-current and current lease liabilities.

Interest-bearing debt is a key figure to measure YIT’s total debt financing.

Net interest-bearing debt

Interest-bearing debt less cash and cash equivalents and interest-bearing receivables.

Net interest-bearing debt is an indicator to measure YIT’s net debt financing.

Equity ratio

Total equity / total assets less advances received.

Equity ratio is a key figure to measure the relative proportion of equity used to finance
YIT’s assets.

Gearing ratio

Interest-bearing debt less cash and cash equivalents and interest-bearing receivables/total equity.

Gearing ratio is one of YIT's key longterm financial targets. It helps to understand how
much debt YIT is using to finance its assets relative to the value of its equity.

Return on capital employed, segments total
(ROCE), %, rolling 12 months

Rolling 12 months adjusted operating profit/capital employed, segments total average.

(YIT has changed the definition of return on capital employed on January 1, 2020 to include leases related
entries)

Return on capital employed, % describes segment's relative profitability, in other words,
the profit received from capital employed.

Operating cash flow after investments

Operating cash flow presented in cash flow statement after investments.
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Gross capital expenditures

Investments in tangible and intangible assets, excluding additions in leases.

Equity per share

Total equity divided by number of outstanding shares at the end of the period.

Net debt / adjusted EBITDA ratio (rolling 12
months)

Net debt/rolling 12 months adjusted earnings before depreciations and amortisations (YIT has changed the
definition of return on capital employed on January 1, 2020 to include leases related entries and to exclude
EBITDA from discontinued operations).

Net debt to adjusted EBITDA gives investor information on ability to service debt.

Market capitalisation

(Number of shares — treasury shares) multiplied by share price on the closing date by share series.

Average share price

EUR value of shares traded during period divided by number of shares traded during period.

Dividend per earnings, %

Dividend per share divided by earnings per share.

Effective dividend yield, %

Dividend per share divided by closing price of the share, December 31.

Price/earnings ratio (P/E-ratio)

Closing price of the share, December 31 divided by earnings per share.
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Definitions of non-financial key performance indicators

Key figure

Definition

Reason for use

Net impact

Upright model version 0.3.331 (10 December 2020).

The model by The Upright Project illustrates the net impacts of the outcomes of YIT’s
operations to the society.

Energy consumption

Consumption of direct and indirect energy sources in all YIT’s offices, construction sites and transportation
under operational control.

Energy consumption describes the energy intensity of YIT’s operations.

Emissions Scope 1, Scope 2 and Scope 3 emissions in total.

Scope 1 Emissions of direct energy consumption in carbon dioxide equivalents. Describes the direct emissions of energy consumption caused by YIT’s operations.
Includes all offices, construction sites and transportation under YIT’s operational control.

Scope 2 Emissions of electricity and heat consumption in carbon dioxide equivalents. Describes the indirect emissions of energy consumption caused by YIT’s operations.
Includes all offices, construction sites and transportation under YIT’s operational control.
YIT reports both market and location-basd indicators in its separate GRI index but uses a market-based
approach when calculating the total emissions.

Scope 3 Emissions of waste and business flights in carbon dioxide equivalents. Describes the indirect emissions of waste and business flights caused by YIT's

Includes all offices and sites under YIT’s operational control and entire personnel.

operations.

Emission intensity:

Own operations

Total emissions divided by revenue (tCO2e/M€).

Emission intensity of own operations describes emissions of YIT’s operations with relation
to business volume.

Self-developed projects

Emissions of materials’ product phase and replacements divided by area of building divided by calculation
period (kgCO2e/m2/year).

In Finland, the area of a building is the net heated area, and in other countries the gross internal floor area.
Calculation period is based on the calculation methodology in use.

In Finland, self-developed projects are calculated using the Finnish Ministry of Environment’s Method for the
whole life carbon assessment of buildings in accordance with the version in force at the time of calculation.
In all other countries, self-developed projects are calculated using the European Commission’s Level(s)
method in accordance with the version in force at the time of calculation. Both methods are based on the
EN 15978 standard.

The emission intensity of self-developed projects describes the emissions caused by the
projects designed and constructed by YIT in relation to the volume of construction and
operating life of projects.

Waste

Amount of waste generated in all offices and construction sites under YIT’s operational control. Amount of
waste does not include land masses.

The amount of waste describes the material loss resulting from YIT’s operations
Reducing the amount of waste reflects the efficiency of operational activities.

Sorting rate

Amount of sorted waste divided by total amount of waste generated.

Sorting rate describes YIT’s ability to sort waste. Waste management partner, if possible,
has the ability to recycle the waste that has been sorted.

Combined accident frequency

Accidents of YIT’s employees and subcontractors per one million hours worked. The accident frequency is
calculated by dividing the number of workplace accidents that caused an absence of at least one day by
one million hours worked. The accident frequency is calculated as a 12-month rolling average.

Accident frequency rate describes the accidents involving YIT’s employees and
subcontractors. This is significant for a healthy and safe working environment.

Fatal accidents

Deaths of YIT’s and subcontractors’ employees at YIT’s construction sites.

Fatal accidents describes any fatalities that have occurred at YIT construction sites. This
is significant for a healthy and safe working environment.
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Key figure

Definition

Reason for use

Personnel survey:

Commitment index

The result of the index is demonstrated as a percentage of positive values (values 4 and 5, on a scale from 1 to 5).

Questions in the Commitment index:

e | am proud of working for YIT.

o [f | was offered a similar position with similar salary and benefits in a different company, | would not leave YIT.
e Overall, | am satisfied with YIT as a workplace

* | am prepared to recommend YIT as a good place to work.

The commitment index describes the commitment of YIT’s employees towards their
employer. This is significant for the comfort of the personnel.

Leadership index

The result of the index is demonstrated as a percentage of positive values (values 4 and 5, on a scale from 1 to 5).

Questions in the Leadership index:

* My superior clearly communicates what is expected of me.

* My superior cares about my well-being.

* My superior supports me when needed.

¢ My superior creates an atmosphere where people feel able to express their concerns and be heard.

The leadership index describes the satisfaction of YIT's employees regarding supervisory
work. This is significant for the comfort of the personnel.

Spirit index

The result of the index is demonstrated as a percentage of positive values (values 4 and 5, on a scale from 1 to 5).

Questions in the Spirit index:

® | like coming to work.

¢ \We are making the needed changes to be successful in the future.

e | understand the goals and direction of YIT.

¢ | have access to the information | need to know what is going on at YIT.
* | would recommend YIT as a great place to work.

* The people | work with cooperate to get the job done.

The spirit index describes the wellbeing at work and cooperation of YIT’s employees. This
is significant for the comfort of the personnel.

Sustainability index

The result of the index is demonstrated as a percentage of positive values (values 4 and 5, on a scale from 1 to 5).

Questions in the Sustainable development index:

e | am satisfied with my development opportunities.

e | dare to intervene if | see unethical or unsafe behaviour.

* My superior places safety first.

 YIT Values guide my day-to-day behaviour.

* YIT looks after the well-being of personnel.

¢ Environmental responsibility is implemented in our daily operations.
® People are treated fairly at YIT.

The sustainability index describes the attitude and experiences of YIT’s employees
regarding ethical and responsible ways of action. This is significant for the comfort of the
personnel and the compliance of common ways of working.

Cases of bullying

Share of personnel stating that they have experienced bullying.

Cases of bullying describes the frequency of bullying experienced by YIT’'s employees.
This is significant for the comfort of the personnel and equal treatment.

Employee turnover

The share of employees who left YIT’s service out of all employees. Calculated as a 12-month rolling average.

Describes YIT’s attractiveness as an employer and employee commitment.

Code of Conduct training

Share of personnel who have completed the Code of Conduct training by the due date.

Completing the Code of Conduct training describes the number of employees who
have completed the mandatory training. This is significant for the deployment of YIT’s
operating instructions.

Investigations regarding potential criminal
activity, misconduct or other deviations related to
corporate security

Internal and external as well as verified and unverified reports.

Investigations regarding potential criminal activity, misconduct or other deviations related
to corporate security describes the number of submitted reports. This is significant for
the compliance of ethical and common operating instructions and the deployment of a
culture of taking action.

Inspections in line with the Contractor’s
Obligations Act:

Subcontracting agreements

Number of completed inspections related to subcontracting agreements.

The inspections of subcontracting agreements describes the monitoring of realising the
Finnish Contractor’s Obligations Act. This is significant for preventing corruption, bribery
and grey economy as well as mitigating financial risks.

Projects

Number of completed inspections related to projects.

The inspections of projects describes the monitoring of realising the Finnish Contractor’s
Obligations Act. This is significant for preventing corruption, bribery and grey economy as
well as mitigating financial risks.
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RECONCILIATION OF CERTAIN KEY FIGURES

RECONCILIATION OF ADJUSTED EBITDA (ROLLING 12 MONTHS)

EUR million 12/2020
Adjusted operating profit 85
Depreciations and amortisations 58
Depreciation and amortisation expenses from PPA -3
Goodwill impairment -156
Adjusted EBITDA 125
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT, IFRS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME, IFRS

EUR million Note 2020 2019 EUR million Note 2020 2019
Revenue 1,2 3,069 3,392 Result for the period 27 15
Other operating income 5 30 22
Change in inventories of finished goods and in work in progress -249 -205 Items that may be reclassified to income statement
Production for own use 0 0 Change in translation differences 21 -88 50
Materials and supplies -325 -524 Translation differences reclassified to income statement 21 1 8
External services -1,612 -1,759 Items that may be reclassified to income statement, total -87 58
Personnel expenses 7 -372 -406
Other operating expenses 6 -456 -464 Items that will not be reclassified to income statement
Changes in fair value of investments 28 -14 81 Change in fair value of defined benefit pensions 0 0
Share of results of associated companies and joint ventures 14 23 1 Income tax relating to item above 0 0
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 11,12,13 -58 -58 Items that will not be reclassified to income statement, total 0 0
Operating profit 35 80
Finance Income 4 6 Other comprehensive income, total -87 58
Exchange rate differences (net) 1 -2 Total comprehensive income -60 73
Finance expenses -45 -45 Attributable to
Finance income and expenses, total 8 -41 -40 Owners of YIT Corporation -60 73
Result before taxes -6 40 Non-controlling interests 0
Income taxes 9 -3 -36 Total -60 73
Result for the period, continuing operations -8 5
Result for the period, discontinued operations 4 35 10
Result for the period 27 15
Attributable to
Owners of YIT Corporation 26 15
Non-controlling interests 0
Total 27 15
Earnings per share, attributable to the equity holders of the parent company 0
Basic, EUR, total 0.13 0.07
Diluted, EUR, total 0.13 0.07
Basic, EUR, continuing operations 10 -0.04 0.02
Basic, EUR, discontinued operations 10 0.17 0.05
Diluted, EUR, continuing operations -0.04 0.02
Diluted, EUR, discontinued operations 0.17 0.05
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION, IFRS

EUR million Note 2020 2019 EUR million Note 2020 2019
ASSETS EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Non-current assets Equity attributable to the equity holders of the parent company 21
Property, plant and equipment 11 68 76 Share capital 150 150
Leased property, plant and equipment 13 84 95 Legal reserve 1 1
Goodwill 12 249 264 Unrestricted equity reserve 553 553
Other intangible assets 12 10 15 Treasury shares -10 -12
Investments in associated companies and joint ventures 14 80 56 Translation differences -303 -216
Equity Investments 15 180 194 Retained earnings 527 585
Interest-bearing receivables 16 49 47 Equity attributable to owners of the parent company 918 1,061
Other receivables 16 11 12 Non-controlling interests 2
Deferred tax assets 17 35 34 Equity total 920 1,061
Non-current assets total 764 793 Non-current liabilities
Current assets Deferred tax liabilities 17 10 9
Inventories 18 1,376 1,741 Pension obligations 23 2 2
Leased inventories 13 190 188 Provisions 24 78 78
Trade and other receivables 19 417 484 Borrowings 25 286 355
Interest-bearing receivables 19 17 9 Lease liabilities 13,25 174 206
Income tax receivables 2 22 Trade and other payables 26 27 57
Cash and cash equivalents 20 419 132 Non-current liabilities total 577 707
Current assets total 2,421 2,576 Current liabilities
Assets classified as held-for-sale 4 333 Advances received 2 429 572
Total assets 3,185 3,702 Trade and other payables 26 566 713
Income tax payables 3 2
Provisions 24 37 37
Borrowings 25 592 434
Lease liabilities 13,25 62 55
Current liabilities total 1,688 1,814
Liabilities directly associated with assets classified as held-for-sale 4 120
Liabilities total 2,265 2,641
Total equity and liabilities 3,185 3,702
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT, IFRS

EUR million Note 2020 2019 EUR million Note 2020 2019
Cash flow from operating activities Operating cash flow after investments 336 51
Result for the financial year 27 15
Adjustments for Cash flow from financing activities
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 11,12,13 58 69 Change in equity 21 2 -7
Other non-cash transactions 14 =77 Change in loan receivables 25 -10 4
Finance income and expenses 42 42 Proceeds from current borrowings 25 513 643
Gains on the sale of tangible and intangible assets -57 -6 Repayment of current borrowings 25 -448 -622
Taxes =1l 36 Proceeds from non-current borrowings 25 57 50
Total adjustments 56 65 Repayment of non-current borrowings 25 -30 -160
Payments of lease liabilities 25 -35 -48
Change in working capital Dividends paid 21 -84 -57
Change in trade and other receivables 5 -20 Net cash used in financing activities -35 -188
Change in inventories 251 139
Change in current liabilities -299 -7 Net change in cash and cash equivalents 301 -137
Change in working capital, total 7 12 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 132 264
Foreign exchange rate effect on cash and cash equivalents -14 5
Interest paid -48 -58 Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 20 419 132
Other financial items -7 -6
Interest received 4 3
Dividends received 0 0
Taxes paid 15 -43
Net cash generated from operating activities 54 88

Cash flow from investing activities

Acquisition of subsidiaries, associated companies and joint ventures, net of cash -27 -34
Purchases of property, plant and equipment -13 -36
Purchases of intangible assets 0 -2
Proceeds from sale of subsidiaries, associated companies and joint ventures 306 13
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 16 21
Proceeds from sale of equity investments 0 0
Net cash used in investing activities 282 -38
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY, IFRS

Unrestricted Equity attributable Non-
Legal equity Translation Treasury Retained to owners of parent controlling Equity
EUR million Note Share Capital reserve reserve differences shares earnings company interests total
Equity on January 1, 2019 150 1 553 -274 -6 625 1,050 1,050
Comprehensive income
Result for the period 15 15 15
Change in fair value of defined benefit pension 0 0
Income tax relating to item above 0 0
Translation differences 21 50 50 50
Translation differences reclassified to income statement 21 8 8 8
Comprehensive income for the period, total 58 15 73 73
Transactions with owners
Dividend distribution 21 -57 -57 -57
Share-based incentive schemes 7 1 1 2 2
Acquisition of treasury shares 21 -8 -8 -8
Transactions with owners, total -7 -55 -62 -62
Equity on December 31, 2019 150 1 553 -216 -12 585 1,061 1,061
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY, IFRS

Unrestricted Equity attributable Non-
Legal equity Translation Treasury Retained to owners of parent controlling Equity
EUR million Note Share Capital reserve reserve differences shares earnings company interests total
Equity on January 1, 2020 150 1 553 -216 -12 585 1,061 1,061
Comprehensive income
Result for the period 26 26 0 27
Change in fair value of defined benefit pension 0 0 0
Income tax relating to item above 0 0 0
Translation differences 21 -88 -88 0 -88
Translation differences reclassified to income statement 21 1 1 1
Comprehensive income for the period, total -87 27 -60 0 -60
Transactions with owners
Dividend distribution 21 -84 -84 -84
Share-based incentive schemes 7 =i | -1
Acquisition of treasury shares 21 2 2 2
Transactions with owners, total 2 -85 -83 -83
Other items
Non-controlling interests from business combinations 2 2
Other items, total 2 2
Equity on December 31, 2020 150 1 553 -303 -10 527 918 2 920
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IFRS ACCOUNTING POLICIES OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS, DECEMBER 31, 2020

GENERAL INFORMATION

YIT is the biggest Finnish construction service provider. YIT develops

and builds apartments and living services, business premises and entire
areas. YIT is also specialised in demanding infrastructure construction. The
continuing operations’ market areas are Finland, Sweden, Norway, Russia,
Estonia, Lithuania, Latvia, the Czech Republic, Slovakia and Poland.

The Group’s parent company is YIT Corporation. The parent company is
domiciled in Helsinki (Finland), and its registered address is Panuntie 11,
00620 Helsinki, Finland. The parent company YIT Corporation’s shares are
listed on Nasdag OMX Helsinki Oy, the Helsinki stock exchange.

YIT Corporation’s Board of Directors approved these consolidated financial
statements for publication in its meeting held on February 2, 2021. Copies
of the consolidated financial statements will be available on the company’s
website from week 8 of 2021 onwards.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) approved

for adoption by the European Union, and they comply with the IAS and
IFRS standards and respective SIC and IFRIC Interpretations effective on
December 31, 2020. International Financial Reporting Standards refer to
standards and their interpretations approved for adoption within the EU in
accordance with the procedure enacted in EU regulation (EC) 1606/2002,
included in the Finnish Accounting Act and regulations based on it. The
notes to the consolidated financial statements are also in accordance with
Finnish accounting and corporate legislation supplemental to the IFRS
standards. The notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements. In the financial statements, the figures are presented in million
euros, but the figures are presented in more detail if giving a true view
requires it. The financial statements are based on original cost, except for the
assets presented below, which have been valued at fair value in accordance
with the applicable standards.
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MANAGEMENT JUDGEMENT RELATED TO APPLICATION OF
ACCOUNTING POLICIES OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
KEY ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

When preparing the financial statements, the company’s management

has had to make accounting estimates and assumptions about the future,
as well as judgement-based decisions on the application of accounting
policies. These estimates and decisions may affect the reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses for the reporting period as well
as the recognition of contingent items. The estimates and assumptions

are based on historical knowledge and other justifiable assumptions which
are considered to be reasonable at the time of preparing the financial
statements. It is possible that actuals differ from the estimates and
assumptions used in the financial statements due to the related uncertainty,
even though they are based on best knowledge and up-to-date information.

Below are described the sections of the financial statements that involve an
unusual amount of judgement or that include significant assumptions and
estimates.

Assessment of power when making consolidation decisions

In addition to self-developed projects, YIT implements projects together with
other parties via a consortium, company or some other joint arrangement.
To define the accounting treatment of the arrangement (a subsidiary, joint
venture, joint operation, associated company or equity investment), YIT's
management uses its judgement to assess the key elements of power
(such as the company’s decision-making mechanisms, legal structure and
financing of the arrangements) and their effect on the consolidation.

Recognition and measurement of revenue

A major part of YIT's business is project related, and projects might extend
across several years. Project revenue recognition over time is based on
estimated revenue and costs as well as a reliable estimate of measure of
progress. These estimates contain a considerable amount of management
judgement which is described in more detail below.

Significant management judgements related to recognition and measurement
of revenue are related to the number of performance obligations, estimates
regarding the contract’s transaction price, i.e. realised revenues, determining

measure of progress as well as the timing of the fulfilment of the performance
obligations.

Number of performance obligations

When identifying performance obligations, YIT's management assesses,

for example, the interrelations between the different tasks and services

of construction services as well as whether the customer can separately
benefit from them. The significant management judgement in identifying
performance obligations is related to additional tasks performed in addition
to construction service. Management has concluded to account for
construction service and the transfer of the plot included in the customer
contract as one performance obligation. This is because the output of the
construction service, that is, the building, is significantly integrated with the
plot, the building cannot be later separated from the plot and the plot can no
longer be used for another purpose once the building is finished. Wind power
projects’ customer contracts, where YIT sells project rights and construction
services to the customer, include two distinct performance obligations based
on YIT’s current business model. YIT’s management has concluded that the
lease liability commitment in business premise projects’ , or the so-called
lease liability commitments, creates one performance obligation together with
the construction service. In projects like this, YIT's promise to the customer
is to deliver a building constructed or renovated and leased as agreed. In
other words, the management has determined that the overall promise to the
customer is an agreed cash flow amount in the form of rental income instead
of a distinct construction service or rental service.

Determining the transaction price

To determine revenue, management must assess the factors affecting the
expected transaction price, including variable components, such as penalties
or additional fees based on the work performances. In the transaction price
YIT includes variable considerations, such as penalties or additional fees
based on work performances, which are highly probable not to result in
significant reversal of cumulative revenue recognised when the uncertainty
associated with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved. YIT
assesses the initial transaction price for each contract. YIT only enters into
contracts that are highly likely, in YIT’s estimate, to be implemented as
agreed. As a result, in the initial transaction prices, penalties are typically
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estimated not to be realised. The variable considerations are reassessed
contract-specifically at each reporting date.

Significant bonuses are primarily linked to Infrastructure segment’s alliance
projects, where all parties of the alliance affect the outcome of the bonuses.
Because the outcome of the bonuses is not purely dependent on the
success of YIT’s performance, YIT limits the revenue recognition of the
variable consideration and does not include bonuses in the transaction price
based solely on its own performance. YIT’s management has concluded that
bouses are highly probable if the bonus has been estimated to be realised
by the alliance’s steering committee, where the performances of all parties to
the project are assessed as a whole.

Significant variable considerations are linked to some customer contracts
as lease liability commitments. In this case, the consideration received by
YIT will vary on the basis of the success of the rental, that is, based on the
realised occupancy rates and prices. In contracts like this, YIT limits the
recognition of revenue from variable considerations and does not recognise
variable consideration as revenue when such variable consideration is not
highly probable to be realised. The management’s estimate of the amount
of variable consideration that is highly probable to be realised is based on
historical and project-specific data on a project-by-project basis.

In some cases, YIT’s claims to the customer might cause disagreements.
The disagreements might be a result of additional and change works, defects
in designs as well as disruptions to the project’s time schedule. In these
cases, YIT assesses its legal position and applies IFRS 15 guidance on
contract modifications.

Determining the measure of progress

YIT uses an input-based method in measuring the progress of construction
projects. YIT's management considers that realised costs, i.e. costs incurred
from raw materials, labour input and other procedures performed in order
to further the project towards completion, in proportion to estimated total
costs, best depicts a construction project’s progress towards completion.
Similarly, costs not incurred in proportion to estimated total costs better
depict performance not fulfilled, i.e. YIT’s obligation to fulfil a partially non-
transferred performance obligation.
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A contract’s estimated costs are determined and specified as accurately as
possible to make a reliable estimate in determining the measure of progress
with input-based methods. The calculation of the total profits of contracts
includes estimates of the development of the total expenditure required to
complete the contract. The total cost estimate might also include estimates
related to subcontractors’ costs in dispute. When assessing the impact of
those costs on the total cost estimate, YIT's management estimates the
situation of the disputes based on the best knowledge available at that
point. Despite of the careful assessment by the company’s management,
the outcome might differ from the estimate. Estimates related to contract
revenue recognition are regularly and reliably updated.

If the estimates of the end result of a contract recognised as revenue over
time change, the revenue and profit recognised are adjusted in the reporting
period when the change first became known and could be estimated. If it

is probable that the total expenditure required to complete a contract will
exceed the total income from the contract, the expected loss is expensed
immediately.

Timing of the fulfilment of performance obligations

According to management’s judgement, transfer of the control of an
apartment is transferred to the customer by physical handover in residential
development projects that are recognised as revenue at a point in time.
The physical handover is mainly performed by delivering keys immediately
after the project is completed. In some countries, the required regulatory
approvals are not obtained immediately after the project is completed, and
therefore the physical handover of the apartments is also delayed. In these
countries, YIT considers that control is transferred when the regulatory
approvals are obtained.

Estimates and assumptions used in goodwill impairment
testing

Goodwill is tested for potential impairment annually and whenever there

are indications of impairment. The recoverable amounts of cash-generating
units have been determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations require a significant use of estimates and assumptions. The
cash flow forecasts are based on financial plans approved by the company’s
management for a certain period and on other justifiable estimates of the

prospects for the business sector and the cash-generating unit. The key
uncertainties in value-in-use calculations are the discount rate and the long-
term growth assumption. A more detailed description of the estimates and
assumptions concerning goodwill impairment testing is given in the notes to
the financial statements.

Recoverability of deferred taxes

Deferred tax assets recognised on tax losses contain uncertainty of their
recoverability. Deferred tax assets from tax losses are recorded in the
amount that the management estimates, based on its profit forecasts,

to be recoverable in the future, considering the expiration period of tax
losses. Additionally, the management takes into consideration the reason of
occurrence of losses when estimating the probability of recurrence of losses.
The recoverability of deferred tax assets is assessed regularly.

Measurement and recognition of leases

The assessment of lease term and incremental borrowing rate have a
significant impact on measurement of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets.
When assessing the lease term, YIT will include the periods covered by
extension options and termination options whether it’s reasonably certain
to exercise or not to exercise such an option. The management considers,
for example, contractual terms and conditions for optional periods or costs
related to termination of lease and signing of new replacement. Overall, the
management is always considering the importance of a certain asset to

its operations. Typically, the plot lease agreements related to own building
development are in the Group’s possession only for a short period of time.
Considering the Group’s use of the of the plot lease agreements related to
own building development, it can be assumed that YIT will not use possible
termination, purchase or extension options. With office agreements the
management is considering the significance of the leasehold improvements
and possible relocation costs.

If the lease term is indefinite, the management assesses the period when the
contract is enforceable to define what is the earliest point in time at which
both parties (lessee and lessor) can leave the contract and its contractual
obligations without no more than an insignificant penalty. As a significant
penalty YIT considers not only direct penalty payments to lessor but also
indirect or economic penalties for both parties. YIT considers the facts
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and circumstances mentioned above, including the nature of the leased
asset in relation to the corresponding business plan, to assess when it will
be reasonably certain to terminate the lease contract. The lease term is
assessed accordingly. YIT’s indefinite lease contracts are typically related to
buildings and machinery and equipment.

In the definition of incremental borrowing rate, YIT has considered the nature
of a leased asset, risk factors of the Group and geographical location,
underlying currency and duration of an agreement.

Inventories

The need for inventory write-downs is assessed regularly by comparing

the cost of inventory with the net realisable value. Net realisable value is an
entity-specific value which is based on most reliable evidence available at the
time. The management is required to estimate among others the yield levels
of the items, the future sales prices and the intended future use of land areas
to make the assessment.

Materials and other supplies held for use in the production of inventories are
not written-down below cost if the finished products in which they will be
incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost.

Assumptions used in measuring pension benefits

The current value of pension obligations depends on various actuarial factors
and the discount rate used. Changes in the assumptions and discount rate
impact the carrying amount of pension liabilities. The discount rate used

is the market rate of high-quality corporate bonds or the interest rate of
treasury notes for the currency in which the benefits will be realised. The
maturity of the reference rate used corresponds substantially to the maturity
of the calculated pension liability. Other assumptions are based on actuarial
statistics and prevailing market conditions.

Valuation of equity investments

YIT has one (Tripla Mall Ky) equity investment whose current fair value
valuation is significantly based on the valuation of the property. The key
inputs in the fair valuation of the property are the yield, vacancy rate as well
as the compound annual growth rate of the net operating income. YIT’s

management has had to use its consideration and estimates to specify them.
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The management of the company follows constantly the indicators and
their development relating to fair valuation of the equity investments. A more
detailed description of estimates and assumptions concerning valuation of
equity investments is given in the notes to the financial statements.

Probability and amount of provisions

The recognition of provisions involves probability and amount-related
estimates. The estimate of the probability and amount of realised costs is
based on previous similar events and experience-based knowledge.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS FROM JANUARY 1, 2020

The amendments effective as of January 1, 2020 did not have impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

Subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements cover the parent company YIT
Corporation and all the subsidiaries in which the Group exercises control.
The criteria for control are fulfiled when the parent company owns more than
50% of voting shares in the company, either directly or indirectly, or when

it has the ability to affect the company’s business and financial principles
through its power over the company. Subsidiaries are consolidated in the
consolidated financial statements from the date when the Group obtains
control, while subsidiaries divested are consolidated until the date when
control ceases. Direct acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business
combinations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary
is the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group. Direct
acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred and thus, they are not
included in the consideration transferred. The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured

initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any

non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis,
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date
carrying value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
is re-measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any gains or losses
arising from such re-measurement are recognised in the income statement.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group is recognised
at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair value
of the contingent consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability

is recognised in the income statement. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not re-measured, and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

Redemption liabilities related to non-controlling interests are recognised as
financial liabilities measured at fair value.

Intra-group transactions, unrealised internal margins and internal receivables,
liabilities and dividend payments are eliminated in consolidation. The
distribution of profit for the financial year to the shareholders of the parent
company and to the non-controlling interests is presented in the income
statement. On the statement of financial position, the non-controlling interest
is included in the total equity of the Group.

Associates and joint ventures

Associates are entities over which the company has significant influence, but
neither control nor joint control. Typically, significant influence is considered
to exist when the company holds 20% or more of the voting rights of the
entity but does not have control. An entity is classified as a joint venture
when the company has joint control with another party or parties and when
decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous consent of all
parties. When classifying the arrangement, the management estimates the
arrangement’s actual nature of decision making as well as contractual rights
and obligations.
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Associates and joint ventures are consolidated using the equity method. In
the equity method, the Group’s share of the results of associates and joint
ventures corresponding to its ownership stake is included in the consolidated
income statement. Correspondingly, the Group’s share of the equity in the
associate or joint venture, including the goodwill arising from its acquisition, is
recorded as the value of the Group’s holding in the entity on the consolidated
statement of financial position. If the Group’s share of the losses of an
associate or joint venture exceeds the investment’s carrying amount, the
investment is assigned a value of zero on the statement of financial position
and the excess is disregarded, unless the Group has obligations related to
the associate or joint venture.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associates

and joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s ownership

and they are realised to income statement when control of the service or
product is transferred outside the Group’s influence. Unrealised losses from
transactions between the Group and its associates and joint ventures are
not eliminated. Accounting policies of the associates and joint ventures have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
applied by the Group.

Joint operations

Mutual property companies of which YIT owns less than 100% are treated as
joint operations. YIT also carries out construction services through consortia.
A construction consortium is not an independent legal entity, but the
contracting parties are directly responsible for its operations and liabilities.
YIT includes in its consolidated financial statements its share of the income,
expenses, assets and liabilities of the joint operations.

Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests as transactions
with equity owners. When the Group purchases from non-controlling
interests, the difference between any consideration paid and the relevant
share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is
recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests
are also recorded in equity.
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When the Group ceases to have control, any remaining interest in the
entity is re-measured at fair value on the date control ceases, with the
change in the carrying amount recognised in the income statement. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted for as realised and booked
to the income statement. If the interest is reduced but control is retained,
only a proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are booked to non-controlling interest in equity.

SEGMENT REPORTING

YIT has five reportable segments: Housing Finland and CEE, Housing
Russia, Business premises, Infrastructure and Partnership properties.
YIT presents the segment figures in a manner which is consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the Group Management Team. The
Group Management Team is the chief operating decision-maker which
is responsible for the allocation of resources to the segments and the
assessment of the business segments’ performance.

Group and segment reporting is prepared in accordance with the International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). Segments’ revenue, depreciation,
amortisation, impairment, operating profit and adjusted operating profit are
reported regularly to the Management Team. In addition, the segment-specific
capital employed is reported, which includes both tangible and intangible
assets, shares in associates and joint ventures, investments, inventories, trade
receivables and other non-interest bearing receivables, provisions, advance
payments and other non-interest bearing debts excluding items related to
taxes, distribution of profits and finance items are reported.

The financial statement items of each Group company are measured

using the currency of its business environment (functional currency). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in euro, which is the Group’s
functional and reporting currency.

NON-CURRENT ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE AND
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Non-current assets or a disposal group are classified as held for sale if
their carrying amount will be recovered principally through the disposal
of the assets and the sale is highly probable. If their carrying amount will

be recovered principally through their disposal rather than through their
continuing use, they are measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell.

In the financial statements of 2019, YIT classified its Nordic paving and
mineral aggregates businesses as assets held-for-sale and reported them
as discontinued operations. The assets and liabilities related to discontinued
operations were presented as separate line items in the statement of financial
position as assets held-for-sale until the sale. The sale was completed on
April 1, 2020. The result from discontinued operations is reported separately
from income and expenses from continuing operations in the consolidated
income statement. Intra-group revenues and expenses between continuing
and discontinued operations have been eliminated, except for those
revenues and expenses that are considered to continue after the disposal of
the discontinued operation.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing on the date of transaction or valuation,
where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange rate gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at
year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the income statement. Foreign exchange
gains and losses that relate to borrowings and cash and cash equivalents
are presented in the income statement within “Finance income and costs”.
All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the income
statement above operating profit. Non-monetary items are mainly valued

at the transaction date’s foreign exchange rates. The foreign exchange

rate gains or losses related to non-monetary items valued at fair value are
included in the change of the fair value.

Translation of the financial statements of

foreign group companies

The income statements of foreign Group companies have been translated to
euro using the average exchange rate quoted for the calendar months of the
reporting period. The statement of financial positions have been translated
using the rates on the closing date. The translation of the result for the period
using different exchange rates in the income statement and statement of
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financial position results in a translation difference, which is entered in equity
in the retained earnings.

Translation differences arising from the elimination of the acquisition cost
of foreign subsidiaries and items classified to be a part of net investments
and the hedging result of these net investment are entered in shareholders’
equity. When a business is disposed of or sold, exchange differences that
were recorded in equity are recognised in the income statement as part of
the gain or loss on sale.

Both the goodwill arising from the acquisition of a foreign unit and the
adjustments of acquired assets and liabilities to their fair values have been
treated as the assets and liabilities of the foreign unit in question and
translated at the rate on the closing date.

Currency exchange rates used in YIT’s consolidated financial
statements:

Average rate Balance sheet rate

1-12/20 1-12/19 12/20 12/19

1EUR = CZK 26.4595 25.6693 26.2420 25.4060
PLN 4.4436 4.2974 4.5597 4.2568

RUB 82.6883 72.4484 91.4671 69.9563

SEK 10.4875 10.5871 10.0343 10.4468

NOK 10.7261 9.8505 10.4703 9.8638

DKK 7.4543 7.4661 7.4409 7.4715
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REVENUE FROM CUSTOMER CONTRACTS

The services and products provided by YIT are described in segment note
for each segment.

Presentation and measurement of revenue

YIT presents revenues from contracts with customers less indirect taxes and
discounts as revenue. The transaction price expected to be received from the
customer, including variable amounts such as possible penalties and bonus
payments based on performance, is determined at the contract inception.
Some or all of the amount of the variable consideration estimated is included in
the transaction price only to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant
reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the
uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.
The estimated transaction price is updated at the end of each reporting

period. All costs generated before the inception of a contract are expensed
once incurred if they cannot be capitalised according to other standards.

YIT capitalises costs to fulfil contracts, that meet the criteria of capitalisation.
Capitalised costs to fulfil contracts are amortised according to the project’s
measure of progress. For YIT, costs to fulfil contracts are typically costs related
to plots of land in construction projects in which the plot and the construction
service constitute one performance obligation. Costs to fulfil contracts are
presented in the statement of financial position in the line item inventories. In
some specific contracts with customers, there is a significant timing difference
between the payment from the customer and the transfer of the promised
goods or services to the customer. YIT applies a practical expedient and

does not adjust the promised amount of consideration for the effects of a
significant financing component, when the period between the payment

from the customer and the transfer of the promised goods or services to the
customer is expected to be one year or less. A significant financing component
is accounted for if the 12 months financing position is exceeded and the annual
average interest expense is significant with respect to the contract.

Performance obligations

When a contract contains more than one performance obligation, the
transaction price is allocated based on stand-alone selling prices. Construction
constitutes mainly delivering one integrated entirety. In these cases, the contract
contains one performance obligation. Specific aspects regarding performance
obligations are described below. Warranties arising from legislation or general

terms do not affect revenue recognition because they are assurance-type
warranties which are accounted for as provisions. In a case where YIT has
committed to warranty periods that are longer than what has been defined

in legislation or in general terms and conditions, the excess warranty period

is considered as a separate performance obligation and the transaction

price allocated to it, is recognised as revenue when the service is performed.
Contract modifications are additional and change works which are mainly
accounted for as part of the original contract because usually they do not add
distinct services and/or products. YIT's materiality threshold defines whether
additional or change works constitute a separate performance obligation.

Timing of revenue recognition and determining the measure
of progress

Revenue is recognised separately for each performance obligation when or
as the control of the promised good or service is transferred to the customer.
YIT has revenues which are recognised over time and at a point in time.
These are described in more detail below. The recognition of revenue over
time is based on the measure of progress, which is input or output based. In
some circumstances, for example in the early stages of a contract, YIT may
not be able to reasonably measure the outcome of a performance obligation
but expects to recover the costs incurred in satisfying the performance
obligation. In those circumstances, YIT recognises revenue only to the
extent of the costs incurred until such time that it can reasonably measure
the outcome of the performance obligation. If it is probable that the total
costs to complete a customer contract will exceed the transaction price to
be received from the customer contract, the expected loss is expensed and
recognised as a provision.

Contract assets and liabilities

At the end of the reporting period, if the project billing is less than the
revenue recognised based on the measured progress of the project, the
difference is presented in the statement of financial position as a contract
asset in the line item “Trade and other receivables”. At the end of the
reporting period, if the project billing exceeds the revenue recognised based
on the measured progress of the project, the difference is presented in the
statement of financial position as a contract liability under current liabilities in
the line item “Advances received”. Contract liabilities also include non-cash
considerations related to sold but unrecognised self-developed projects.
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Special aspects regarding revenue recognition

Self-developed residential construction in Finland

TRANSACTION PRICE AND TIMING OF REVENUE RECOGNITION

Residential development projects are projects developed by YIT which

are not sold as construction begins and of which individual residential
apartments are sold instead of entire buildings during construction. In
residential development projects, separate residential apartments are distinct
performance obligations. YIT receives advance payments for apartments
sold during construction. Some of the payments occur over 12 months prior
to the hand-over of the residential building. YIT does not account for the time
value of money for payments because management’s judgement is that the
financing component is not significant for the individual contract.

Transaction prices in residential development projects include variable
elements, such as delay penalties. In addition, the transaction price of a

sold residential apartment includes the share of housing corporation loan
allocated to the apartment. The buyer is responsible for the repayment of the
loan allocated to the apartment. The construction cost of Finnish residential
development projects are typically covered partially by housing company loans,
which the housing company raises. Total sales prices, i.e. transaction prices,
received from the sales of residential apartments by YIT contain both sales
prices paid by customers and the housing company loan amounts related

to the apartments. Housing company loans are considered as non-cash
consideration which is presented, based on the substance of the transaction,
as advances received i.e. it is recognised similarly to the transaction price

paid in cash. Housing company loans of unfinished residential development
projects are presented in the consolidated statement of financial position
either in borrowings (unsold apartments) or as a contract liability in advances
received (sold apartments). At the time of the project’s completion, the amount
presented as advances received is recognised as revenue.

The revenue from residential development construction is recognised at a
point in time, on completion, when control of the apartment is transferred

to the customer. According to the Finnish Housing Transactions Act, the
customer has a possibility to cancel the contract before the apartment is
transferred to the customer. The buyer pays a compensation to the seller, but
the compensation does not cover the work done with a mark-up. Therefore,
the over time recognition criteria are not fulfilled.

YIT 2020 | Annual Review

Self-developed residential construction in CEE- countries

TIMING OF REVENUE RECOGNITION

The revenue from residential development projects is recognised at a point in
time after obtaining permission from the authorities.

Self-developed residential construction in Russia

TIMING OF REVENUE RECOGNITION AND DETERMING MEASURE OF PROGRESS
During the first quarter 2020, YIT assessed current legislation, legal practice
and terms of its sales contracts in Russia. The current legislation and legal
practice make the sales contract non-cancellable for the customer. Due to
this, YIT also reassessed the criteria for revenue recognition over time in
Russian residential development projects. As a change to previous practice,
YIT has a right to payment for performance completed to date during the
whole construction period based on legislation and legal practice. Therefore,
the criteria for revenue recognition over time are fulfilled and from the first
quarter onward, YIT has recognised revenue over time from its Russian
residential development projects. The change in sales contracts’ enforceable
rights and obligations for ongoing projects at the time of modification was
accounted for as a contract modification in accordance with IFRS 15 using a
cumulative catch-up method.

In the comparison year 2019, revenues from residential development projects
were recognised at a point in time after obtaining permission from the
authorities.

YIT uses an input-based method for determining the measure of progress.
The measure of progress is determined in proportion of realised costs at time
of reporting to estimated total costs of the project.

COSTS OF FULFILLING A CONTRACT

Costs to fulfil contracts are costs related to plots of land in construction
projects in which the plot and the construction service constitute one
performance obligation.

Self-developed real estate construction

DETERMINING PERFORMANCE OBLIGATIONS

The performance obligation is determined by the scope of the work. If a
contract includes constructing more than one building, each building is

a separate performance obligation. Contracts where YIT sells both the

plot and the construction service are accounted for as one performance
obligation because the output of the construction service, i.e. the building,
is significantly integrated with the plot, the building cannot be separated
from the plot later on, and the plot cannot be used for other purposes after
the building is completed. Projects containing the obligation to lease the
premises, i.e. lease liability commitments, forms one performance obligation
together with the construction service. In these projects, YIT’s promise to
the customer is to deliver a building constructed or renovated and leased
according to the agreed specifications, i.e. the management has determined
that the overall promise to the customer is an agreed amount of cash flow
in the form of rental income instead of a distinct construction service and
leasing service.

DETERMINING TRANSACTION PRICE

The transaction prices of the contracts include variable elements like
possible delay and quality penalties, performance bonuses and lease liability
commitments related to commercial premises. A portion of sales price
based on leased square metres and rents per square metres of commercial
real estate construction is accounted for as a variable consideration in the
transaction.

TIMING OF REVENUE RECOGNITION AND DETERMINING MEASURE OF PROGRESS

In real estate development projects, the criteria for recognising revenue over
time are evaluated against the contract terms and conditions of each project.
The revenue from real estate development contracts where the criteria for
revenue recognition over time are not met, is recognised at a point in time
when the control of the asset is transferred to the customer, i.e. the asset is
completed and handed over to the customer.

YIT uses an input-based method for determining measure of progress.

The measure of progress is determined in proportion of realised costs at
time of reporting to estimated total costs or stage of physical completion,
which is determined in proportion of cost incurred from completed stages of
construction to estimated total costs.
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COSTS OF FULFILLING A CONTRACT

Costs to fulfil contracts are costs related to plots of land in construction
projects in which the plot and the construction service constitute one
performance obligation.

Contracting

PERFORMANCE OBLIGATIONS AND DETERMINING TRANSACTION PRICE

The number of performance obligations depends on the contract and it

is always analysed on a contract-by-contract basis. In most cases, YIT
delivers an integrated entirety which forms one performance obligation. The
transaction prices include variable elements such as possible delay penalties
and bonuses. Especially bonuses in alliance projects might be significant.
These bonuses include significant management judgement which has been
described in more detail in Management judgement related to application of
accounting policies of the financial statements and key accounting estimates
and assumptions.

TIMING OF REVENUE RECOGNITION AND DETERMINING MEASURE OF PROGRESS
The criteria for revenue recognition over time are met in most customer
contracts related to contracting because the work is usually done on
customer’s land area. In other words, the customer has control over the
asset under construction. YIT uses an input-based method to measure

the progress. The measure of progress is determined in proportion of
realised costs at time of reporting to estimated total costs or stage of
physical completion, which is determined in proportion of cost incurred from
completed stages of construction to estimated total costs.

Wind power projects

PERFORMANCE OBLIGATIONS

Wind power projects’ customer contracts, where YIT sells project rights and
construction service to the customer, contain two separate performance
obligations based on YIT’s current business model.

TIMING OF REVENUE RECOGNITION

The revenue from wind power projects’ project rights is recognised as
revenue once customer obtains the legal title of the rights and therefore
controls them. Revenue from the construction services are recognised over
time.
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Discontinued operations (paving and mineral aggregates businesses)
PERFORMANCE OBLIGATIONS AND TRANSACTION PRICE

The performance obligation is determined by the scope of the work. Most
paving services include variable elements in transaction prices in the form of
indices, delay penalties and quality penalties. In supplying mineral aggregates
and asphalt mass, the performance obligation is goods sold, such as
crushed gravel, screened sand, cobblestones or asphalt mass. In providing
services, the performance obligation is the scope of the work, such as
quarrying the customer’s rock. Most of the paving services are short-term,
with invoicing after completion. In long-term paving services, YIT receives
payments based on the paving service’s progress, which corresponds to
satisfying the performance obligation.

TIMING OF REVENUE RECOGNITION AND DETERMINING MEASURE OF PROGRESS
Revenue from paving services is recognised over time. Paving services are
performed within a short period of time, except for occasional long-term
projects. Revenue from short-term paving projects is recognised over time
based on milestones i.e. using the output-based method. The measure of
progress using the output-based method is based on realised units, such
as produced asphalt mass tonnes in proportion to estimated total tonnes
or achieved milestones compared to determined milestones of the whole
paving project. Revenue from long-term paving projects is recognised over
time using an input-based method.

A mineral aggregates excavation and crushing service performed on land
owned by the customer is recognised as revenue over time. The service is
recognised as revenue using an input based method, and it is based on the
realised costs relative to the estimated total cost.

Revenue from the sale of mineral aggregates and asphalt mass is recognised
as revenue at a point in time.

Life cycle projects (service concession arrangements)

In life cycle projects (Public-Private Partnership), the service provider designs
and builds or renovates the infrastructure used for providing the services,
such as a school or road network, and maintains it for the duration of the
contract period. The maintenance contract period is typically long, 20-25

years. Life cycle projects are used in large public construction and renovation
projects, and the customer is typically the public sector. YIT is engaged in life
cycle projects in which YIT itself is responsible for all contractual obligations
to the customer as well as projects that are carried out using a joint venture
or a consortium together with another party. In all life cycle projects, the
basis for payment is usability or quality, hence there are no intangible rights in
the statement of financial position.

All of the life cycle projects in which YIT is a direct contracting party to

the customer are financed by the customer. In these life cycle projects,

the revenue from construction or renovation phases and maintenance
phases are recognised over time as separate performance obligations.

YIT receives payments during the construction period based on the
construction’s progress. During the maintenance period, YIT receives
payments on a monthly basis, corresponding to the provided services.

Life cycle projects include usability deductions which are accounted for as
variable considerations. The consideration of the construction phase is tied
to the construction cost index, and the maintenance periods are tied to the
maintenance index. The indices are reviewed on an annual basis. YIT has no
material supplementary right of use to the infrastructure.

Life cycle projects in which the contracting party to the customer is a joint
venture established by YIT and another party have been carried out using

a model where the joint venture is responsible for the financing. The joint
venture is consolidated into YIT's consolidated financial statements using the
equity method. For the consolidation, the joint venture’s financial statements
have been changed to correspond to YIT’s accounting policies. YIT acts as
the contractor and service provider for the joint venture, and YIT recognises
revenue using the previously explained method.

YIT is also a party to consortia that acts as a contracting party to the
customer. A consortium is not a legal entity. Contractually, the parties have a
joint responsibility towards the customer. In such projects, YIT is responsible
for building the infrastructure. YIT receives payments during the construction
phase based on progress of the construction and recognises revenue over
time from the construction services.
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INTEREST AND DIVIDENDS

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest rate method and
dividend income when the right to dividend has materialised.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Pension liabilities

The Group’s pension plans are mainly defined contribution pension plans.
Contributions to defined contribution pension plans are entered in the income
statement in the financial period during which the charge applies, after which
the Group has no further obligations.

The Group has also defined benefit pension plans in Finland. Independent
actuaries calculate the obligations connected to the Group’s defined benefit
plans. The discount rate used in calculating the present value of the pension
liability is the market rate of high-quality corporate bonds or the interest

rate of treasury notes. The maturity of the reference rate substantially
corresponds to the maturity of the calculated pension liability. The liability
recognised on the statement of financial position in respect of the defined
benefit pension plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation

at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. Defined
benefit pension plan expenses comprise service cost and net interest cost,
which are recognised in personnel expenses. Actuarial gains are recognised
in other comprehensive income and recorded as a change of defined benefit
plan on the statement of financial position.

Share-based payments

Depending on the settlement of the reward, the share-based incentive plans
are recognised either as equity-settled or cash-settled share-based payment
transactions. If the share-based payment transaction includes a net-
settlement feature for withholding tax obligations, the transaction is classified
fully as equity-settled. YIT has both equity- and cash-settled share-based
payment plans and entirely an equity-settled plan.

The fair value of the reward settled as equity is based on the market price of
YIT Corporation’s share at the grant date less the present value of expected
dividends. Additionally, when determining the grant date fair value of the
reward, the effect of market-based vesting conditions (TSR) is taken into
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account. The grant date fair value is determined using a probability weighted
valuation model to reflect the probability of not achieving the market-based
vesting condition. The expense is recognised irrespectively of whether the
market-based vesting condition is satisfied. Non-market-based vesting
conditions and the service condition are not included when determining the
grant date fair value. Instead, the conditions are taken into account in the
number of shares which are expected to vest at the end of the vesting and
commitment period. The fair value of the equity-settled reward is recognised
in personnel expenses and equity during the vesting period.

The cash-settled reward is based on the market price of YIT Corporation’s
share at the reporting date and it is expensed to personnel expenses and
current liabilities until the settlement date. The liability is valued at fair value at
every reporting date.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are costs from which the company does not receive
corresponding work performance. The Group recognises termination benefits
when it is committed to terminating the employment of current employees
according to a detailed formal plan without the possibility of withdrawal. In
addition, benefits that the Group has offered in connection with terminations
to encourage voluntary redundancy are expensed. Other possible liabilities
arising from the termination of employees in different legislations are
assessed at the closing date and recognised as an expense and liability.

LEASE AGREEMENTS

YIT Group as lessee

The Group’s most significant lease agreements include plot lease agreements
related to own building development in Finland and lease agreements related
to buildings and structures, and machinery and equipment.

If the agreement or part of the agreement is classified as a lease, the lease
liability and right-of-use asset are recognised at the commencement date
of an agreement. The commencement date is the date when the underlying
asset is available for use by the lessee.

The Group recognises lease payments related to short-term leases (lease
term is 12 months or less) and leases for which the underlying asset is of low
value on straight-line basis as an expense in the income statement.

Measurement and presentation of lease liability

Lease liabilities are measured by discounting expected future lease payments
to present value. Lease payments comprise fixed lease payments (including
in-substance fixed payments), expected amounts payable related to

residual value guarantee and possible exercise price of purchase option, if
the decision to use a purchase option is reasonably certain. If the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise a termination option, the possible termination
fee is included in the lease liability. The lease term is the non-cancellable
period of the lease covered by options to terminate if the termination is not
reasonably certain. Possible